GGE a.s.

Annual report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2017
and Independent Auditor’s Report

December 2018

Translation note:

This version of our report is a translation from the original, which was prepared in Slovak. All
possible care has been taken to ensure that the translation is an accurate representation of
the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the
original language version of our report takes precedence over this translation.



anosb 3ng 10 Joeguwaw

\\.\r

g_ \?‘ f

el 7




SjUauIslels 1eldueUl 9y} jo 9jep uoljeledald ay) 19)1je SJUSAS JO MIIAJBAQ “Z|

S3IjUIR)Ia2UN pUB SYSIY " |

peolge yun jeuonesiuebio pue

'd'8Y 'suoljejad jelsSNpuUl ‘S313IAINOE |BJUBWIUOIIAUS 8Y) 0) Buiie)as Sa1}IAI2E IN0ge UoHRWIOJU| (0]
dnoi9 399 2'4

SBJ09 L6

Sal}l]igel pue s}assy ‘4

dnouig ayj jo so1wou0d3 Z'g
SJ103)ed(pul ulew s dnolg ayj Jo MIIAIBAQ |°8
dnoig 399 ayj 40 UOIIENYIS |BIDUBUJ PUB SI0}BDIPUI JILLIOU0IS Pa)Ia)as ‘g

saoueulj Auedwog g/

SJ0}BOpIUI 2ILLIOUODS UIBW JO MBIAIBAQ Z°/

9102 404 J1jo1d jo uonngiiisip ayj Joj jesododd |/

'S "B 399 JO UOIIENYIS |RIDUBUIJ PUB SJ0}EDIPUl DILWLOU0S PBlIdas */

UOISSIW PUB UOISIA °9

dnot9 399 2'G
SUEHBY |G
JuswAhoidw3 'g

'S "B 399 J0 a4njanJ)s jeuoljesiueblio diseg y
dnolg 399 ay) Jn0ge uoijewlou| g

dnotg 399 Z'Z
'S'e399 |'Z
mmwc_mjn u—D mqoum U:m m:.cncn_ .N

pleoq ay) jo Jaquwiaw s "B 399 Agq piomalod |

‘SINdLINOD




*5 "B 399 ‘pleog ay) jo Jaquiap
‘znas Aesodi buj

‘slauyied pue

S18Wo3sn3 Uno Joj wsheuoissajold pue Ayigeras Yim snowAuouis
utewsau ‘dnoug ay; uypm saluedwod JENPIAIPUL SB JjoM SB ‘puelq &
se 399 1ey) sl eauepiodwl }sow)n 0 "S1JeWw mau puelq bullajua
uana pue suollsinboe Juanbasqns se J)am se ‘uoljippe s uon(] Jo
S8AlJUadU| pue 9dudliadxa ay) uo azieyded 1jIm am Jey) aAaNaq |

19yJew
Abisua 3y} uo SUDIIENIDIN]S ISISDI 0} BNUIIUOD JJIM Yo1ym ‘dnolg

21qix8)) os\e 124 pajeabaiul AjnJy e 218242 01 SN d)qRUS J)IM Ydeoidde
ue |ons jey) saanaq | “dnoig ayy jo syuawbas pue sayoue.q snoLiea
8y} uaamiaq uonesadood sabuouys buidojarsp pue bBunepnosuod
pue ‘sassaso.d buiziwpdo o} uorpuaye Aed 1)1m am pollad Buiwod
ay1 uj "uoisuedxa jo subis uaas aAey g9 4o} SIeaK JUBIDY

"12)Jew ysijod 2y} 0} s)onpoid pue sadialas

8)geijal }sow pue Ayenb )saq ayj Ja4j0 Uoos )M am - dnoug sy
ul sayouelq snollea usamlaq saibisuis o) syuey; - 1Y) JuaplyLod
wie | "93IMo¥SAq pue A109 SBSMOUIE] JO SUMO) a3 Ul sjue)d 1eay
ajesado pue umo os)e am ‘'seb)3 jo sayouelq ysijod syl Se 11am sy
‘puejod ul sanianae jo onjojdod ano buimodb o) piemdoy 00] M

‘dnoug 399 ay) Jo siaumo pue dnolb asueinsul

-1eroueuly 1eqo)b jeiuapnld ay) jo yed s Ysiym ‘puny JUsWISaAUI
1eudeseuyu| ayy Ag Janc-axe) £ 10z Ae ay) bulinp 399 o} pajenye
awesaq 1| "SJaWISNI ENPIAIPUL PUE 1BI2JSWWND “{BIIISNPUL 008 ¥
13A0 sey 0s)e uon(g "suoileys gNT 0z pue ‘aunadid jo wy ggy uey)
alow ‘ainonJisedul umo syl sey )| "(9NT) seb jednieu payenbn

jo Ajddns sy se 11am se ‘Ajddns seb jeunjeu uo sasndoj uon(g

‘uon(g Ysiod ay} — JaqUIaLLI M3U B PAWLIOD)aM UdIym ‘dnolg 399
ay) Joj enjeao|S puokaq uoisuedxa jsable) ay) pajussaadal £1,0z

ddvod dHL 40 449NN S "8 499
'ZNY1S AVISOYIN A9 dd0OMI Y04



)5 abb mmm

Jagquiaw - uos|ap uaydalg
daquiswl — NiMmizpey yluiwog
lsguisw - ju1zzny o)ned
UBWLIIBYD — UOUUST UIEp

Jagwaw - 0Jag Jored
Jaguwawl - Zna)g AejSOLIRN

laguiaw - ejpeld jjopny
uewulieyd findap - jai nalyiepn
ueuwtieyd Ajndap - atoway xep
uewnieys findsp - UOSUYO[ UBARYS
uewudieyd - 11oubig olaqy

€00 SZ 4N3d

Glog'9°¢

Auedwod y203s Juior
L¥7966002L2MS

1¥9660021¢

7L 8LG 2Ly

eAejsilelq £0 yE8 9 €1S8D euUYad
'S'8399

EHELETY

:pdeoq Alosialadng

:Apoq Auonjers

neydes pasasysibad jo Junowy
UaWIYSIIqelIsa jo ajeq

‘wacy jebs)

:Jaquinu JyA

:laguinu xej

:1aqunu Auedwo?

1921440 paJajsihay

:aweu Auedwoy

'S B 499

SSANISNE 40 3d03S ANV 377140dd



—._ o

INId3axMoosd

S

3AdVyl 3344 40 3d03S
JHL NIHLIM ALIALLOY ONISVIT

30Vy Ll 33484 40 3d03S FHL NIHLIM
ALIAILOV NOILOWOY¥d ANV ONISILYIAQY

3AVyl 3344 40 3d03S FHL
NIHLIM 9NILIV4H04 ANV 9NIY0L1IV4d

AINVLINSNOD ONILNNOJIJV
ANV TYNOILVZINV9YO ‘JIWON0J3

e

y

IN3d 01 d31V13Y S3JIAH3S

JISVE NVHL 43H10 40 NOISIAO¥d 3HL
HLIM S3SIN3dd TVILNIAISIY-NON ANV
TVILN3AIS3Y ‘STLVLIST TVIY ONILNIY

w

3AdVyl 3344 40 3d03S FHL
NIHLIM ADNVLTINSNOI SS3NISNg
e eyl
3AVvdl 33484 40 3d0JS
JHL NIHLIM ALIALLDV NOLLVIQ3W

3AVYL 3344 NIHLIM (3TVS
TIVLIY) SHIWO0LSNI TVNIH 01 3TVS HIFHL
40 3S0ddNd 3H1 404 SA009 40 3SVHIANA

L,

SS3ANISNE 40 3d03S



JINVNILNIVIW ANV d|Vd3d . INIWdIND3 AOYIN3
- TVIWY3HL 40 NOILVY3dO

SONIATING
ONIY3INION3I ¥43H10 u_o NOILINYLSNOD MILIVM LOH ONV LV3H 40

T v NOILNEI¥1SIa ANV A1ddNS ‘NOILINA0YNd

@702 ANV 1vaH *
‘ALI21¥19373 40 NOILONAOYd THL HO4
S3ILITIAVA ASH3NE 40 NOILONYLSNOD - _SY9.40 NOLLASIMISIO ONV AlddMS

-

AWONOJ3 TVILN3AIS34-NON ANV 34 ALIDIYL1I3T13 40 NOLLNEIYLSIa
IVILNIAIS3Y 40 LINJWIOVNVI ANV ATddNS ‘NOILINAO¥d

s -
SSANISNE 40 4d03S

dN0Y9 399




‘dnoub asueansul

-1eidueul} 1eqo)b jenuapnud ayy jo Wed st yaiym
Yendeseuyu| puny JUSWIISIAUI Usijlig Y} uaaq
sey 399 ul J01saAul d1b81eJlS BY) ‘GLOZ 2IUIg
"0S| 01 buipioodoe weysAs Juswabeuepy
paiedbiaju] ayy mo)jop am dnodb 399 ayy ulyym
os "ABiaus uaauib Jo ojed ayj asealdul 0] Wie
pue ‘A)\ea1b0y029 yuiyy ap AbBissus paanpoud jo
8sn 3y aziwdo 0] UGIINYOS SAI}IYD ISOW BY)
$)9as Auedwad uno ‘alojauay] Apoghiana Aq
Pa3usn)jul 8g UEJ JUAWUOJIAUS 3Y} uo 3oedwl
5,/131005 "uoiyosjoud sy Joy Ayiqisuodsad Jno Jo
3JEME BB PUB JUSWUUOIIAUD 3Y} JO 21D 9B} 9

85,

mm.w .

-upne Abisus ue Jsyje sjuawLsaAUIl

1081402 axew o} djay ))Im pue ‘s)sod asiwindo
1Y) suole1nsuod apiaold am siauyled ssauisng
1No 104 "UOIIN|OS |BID1JaUa] }SOW A])BI1UWIOU0DD
pue 3A1198)43 Js0W 2y} sjualjd aaib o] a)qe uaaq
0s]e aAeY am s1eah Auew Joj ‘uoijonpodd umo
J1ay) wouy sduailadxs pue saibiaua yum Buneap
wol) 9aualtadxa bunoauuod Aq Usroalopy
*SP3dU U8y} J0J SUOIIN|OS MU Y}IM SIUB() Jno
apiroad ued am ‘sjaylew ueadolny snoliea

uo Sa1JIAI}OE YM adualtadxa ano o) syuey]

"]aAs] Jamo] B }e S| ssadold

uolnezielaqn ayy a1aym ‘adoang ui syaxylew
Jay1o uo osje abejueape aaljljoduwiod A3y e se
aqgnday ¥eao)s ayy pue sngnday yoazy ayy
u 19yJew Abiaus ay} jo ssadoud uonezijelaqn
9y} woJj wucwtwaxw 9SN 0] JUBM 9MA

ANYTOd

‘salelpisqns sy ybnoiyy
adoin3 ulalseg pue |eJjuaY Ul S9IHPOLILIOD
ABiaus jo Ja)eap juepodw) ue si 399

‘Auedwod

Ino jo jenuajod uoneAcuUl Y} 9SBAIdUI 0S)R aM
yoiym Aq ‘seakojdwa Juno jo ymmodb jeuoissajoid
Buiob-uo ayj oddns am ‘alojelsy] ‘syladxe
paynenb Aybiy Jo wes) e Aq pauuidiapun

2JE }1BY) SUOISIAIP |ENPIAIPUI U3aM]B] MOY
-mouy| pue abpaymouy Buibueyoxes Aq seale
SSauUISNg JeNpIAIPUl Jno Ul AB1auds asealoul apg

‘spuewap Abiaua 13y} 10}

suolimos Ajpuallj-Ajjejuawuociiaug pue ‘pasid
Agerdsaoe ‘aanosys Alybiy yum sjuaid apiaoad
ued am ‘saibiaua Jo A1aanap pue uoljanpoud
ayj jo sabejs snowiea buliarod Aq aaaiyoe am
yo1ym 129y)e ABiauds ay) 0} syueY) 'sUOIIN|OS
Abuaua Jo uolisiaoid ayy oy dn *ABiaus jo
uonoanpoud ayj Joj Juswdinba jo asueuajulew
ay} pue uoijetado ‘salbiaus jo uonnqgisip pue
uoijonpoad ayy ybnolay) ‘saibisus jo uoldnpolid
ayy 4oy 190y Jo L1dANdp ayy wodj - 8124 Abisua
ajoym ayy sbeuew spy "adoing ulaise] pue
1enuag ui saiuedwod Abuaua Buimoub ysaise)
3y} jo suo si pue 00Z Ul payshiqeise sem 399

dN0yd9 499
iH1 108V
NOILVINHO4NI

€



"0'0 Z *dS 84 Y3l

‘0U°s
‘paias eynabiaugy

0U°s
‘Abiauz euiug
‘0’0 2 *dg 594
se
WS ‘eIONQLASIp 399
VraNgAd1sAa
Nond ‘0U's
ed1a3sAg eyszeaod
‘0°0°z "dg 0213 ‘NIYY1d3L
"0°0°2 "0U's 'WHIHLNOS
*ds ad1moueiwRIg
elumo)daty ‘0 1°s 399 ajda]

‘0'0 2 "dg
VAZSVdd NONd

40M]aU UOIINGLIISIP UMo Jo UoneladQ
1eay jo Aiddns pue uolonpold

seaJe A}ID pue sumo) jo buneay

1eay pue ABJaua 214308)9 Jo UonONpPoOld

‘NOILNAIdL1SId ANV
NOIL3NAd0dd

'0°0°Z B)jjods
ABiau3 sy93

"1y Abasu3 sy93

'se 's9)eg Sy9T3

‘0 U 's ‘Abisug
Svo1d

'S 'svoT13

esliobpog -
'0°0°p olbousjuopy
Buipesy
ABiau3 sy913

pelboag

0°0°p ONIAVYL
AJYINT S99

s}@yJew uelqdas pue

yshod ‘Yosazg "yeao)s uo seb pue 1121430913 Jo sped|

-10Vyl

015 'y - |
0475 'gd - Wl

‘0'0 Z'dg
ZV9 B4S]0d 399

'S Te 4|

'S ‘e '04SUaA0)S
0943NIL

‘s ‘B dno.g
ABuaug ‘I'A

peiboag
‘00’p 399

sasiwaJd buiddoys

pue aAnenSIUILPE 'sjuawllede Jo UOIBISIUjWPY
saloe) Abuaua Jo uoljanJauo)

seb pue A1101430819 ‘Buljeay Jo Sade Ul SJURWISAAU]

-S33IA43S

‘S3INVAWOI ONIMOT104 dHL

S3ANTINI 499



uolingLusip pue
aped) uopInpoid

$0102'559d | yyszvid Nong

‘0 ‘0z 'dg

%9y

=

saIMIRS

S as

NORD

enquisig | fre'0'z *dg oaluitey,

gz de
231MOUBIAIS

'ZVE 145104 3 v eiumo)darn

*9°0 2'dg 84 VAL

%¥9'sh

‘ou's ‘pasas

eynaksaug

‘153nuf rgy

%08 |

(F iy T

309

‘o4°s '‘KBuaugy

SAL

*0 4 s KBsaug
eulug

's'e ‘e1anquIsIp
3909

0'0°z eYgds 's*e 'sa)es Y93
Abiaug sya3 3 s 2
%Ol

“0U°S "YAYHdS

W¥3H1N0S

0US g - W4

‘eauebpag= cop
| sabauuop Gutpesy,
Auauz sy9Tg

peifiosg
“0°0'p 9NIAVHL
A9Y3N3 Y913

%9 |

0% RIISAE
B)SZEACY

‘NIYYTdAL

04 ‘WUIHLNOS

0475 399 ojdsy,

50 oysuaKo)s

O9U3N3IL

5 W

86 e

's e ‘199

payuiry
2N 399

paywn
1N 399

d1d15399

d7 [IN) sdauiied
Jeydeseayuq

d1 1l slsupied
1endeseljuy

peiboag
0pR An0

LL0Z Tl LE
J4NLINYLS

dN0d9 399




eysuelag eag

BAO)RQNY Biiep

LU
eaouUISOY ejalueq

WEILNOIdy
RAONUBSIA BUAPZ

BAODIACIEG BIJWT

JLRILROI DY
EADHBSEINI EARUIPEIA

UTING 20y
B}sURINT eULlR)EY

AL LEE

iepRosun
EADMIUDIWEY BURZNZ

eAOpEjRH BULIEIEY
LaurnL g 1Al

ofny sewiof BAOHEUUIIY BYUST

AR e N5
eAoiniEl BiEag

eAOjIa2] 2HWIpR)A BAGDINQGEYET BHUST

..a_rimnm,.a \,f_ (.m;o;c..oﬁi
DuliUnL L Ny (D DR JRENOD M | [FiABS HOJNES (BUi XS LeDELEA Ly
eAOUE)SE|S BUILIERK EADIIUASHO BULIRIEY eAONa5aQ PlIBU} BAODIIBUAIN RLIEW

HRALE
eAQOGOS BURl

dd a5

e\pelid j1opny ZN.NS ABJSON W ayag joARy

i

Jepodsop ARISOSIN

»HQ

gjesy leanp BAONNEYIIN BI0qE]

BLBISILIY
eADYadNE BIpUEXSlY

P

EBADIEUOW BUBZNZ BALEUA(] Uit

AU EDRI2Y

BADYjaZSaY e1dh o

vl

1ezewiAp uer

sUBUL 0L U8

ulalep |BYStN eAOPaN 0344 BYIUOIIA

BRI

pleog co:wEEp

ADOATY oy

BAO)OMOS BIPUBKA)Y HabHUEr JOARg

3dN13INylS
1VNOILVSINVOYHO0 3ISvE 7



‘Buipjinguies) pue sjyuaas siiods aziuebio
am ‘s)ijauag snoliea yim saakojdwa
apiroud am ‘eale (eidas ay) u| -abpajmouy
pue s))13s pasealdul 0} 83nNg1iuod
Aueaytubis sauizebew sped) pied-aug
'Yaam e a31m] adejdydom sy} ie Aj3aadip
sJ8yoea) yum abenbue) ysnbug uses) ued
saafo)dw3 "pasn os)e ale sadualajuod
jeuoissajoid ‘yuswabeuew Jaybiy pue

9)PpIW Jo 95ED B} U] "SIEUIWAS pue
sdoysyJom ‘Bujuiedy jeuoissajoid ybnoiyy
s@af0)dwa Jno 912ONPS 0} BALIIS oM
‘Auedwod 1no Jo ssauaAl}i}adwod ayy
Buiseauour Ajjenunuod jo wie ayy yum

By LIC 2 dN3 3lam
sabueya je1dos Bulpn)sul sasko)dwa Jo
sabem 1oj 51502 |e10] "Suoilenion)y

Jednieu 193))aJ Ajuo sabueyd pue ajgels
s1 saakojdwa jo Jaquinu ay| "saakojdwa
JO Jaguinu ayy ul asealdap 4o ymodh
weoytubis }oedxa jou op am 'eale sy} U|

‘'saafoldwa gg pey
*s'e 199 'SjuUsW]Ie)S JR_IDUBUL BY) JO

91ep 2y} 1B Sy "£F sem saskoydwa jo
Jaquinu abelaae ayy ‘2102 ul

'S 'Bd99

INAWAO TdING



‘Aled sewysuyg e pue ‘sbuipjing wea)
‘s)yauaq snoldea Yym seakojdwa apiaold
am 'eaJe |e1o0s ay) u| ‘abpaimouy pue
s1s Buiseauoul 03 83nqluuod Ajueaiyiubis
sauizebew apeJ) pred-aid "yuawabeuew
Jaybiy pue a1ppiw Joj a\ge)IeAE OS)E ale
$8JU9J3JU0D 1BUOISSB)0Ud "SIRUIWAS

pue sdoysyJom ‘bujuiedy jeucissajoud
ybnouy) seako)dwa Ino 21eINps 0} dALIYS
am ‘Auedwod uno Jo ssausalinadwod ay)
Buiseatoul Ajjenunuod jo wie ayy Yyup

"000 488 6 UN3
Juasaidal syuawAed buipnjoul seskojdws

Jo safiem 4o} s1500 1B10] "SUCKHENION))

Jednjeu yoa)jad Ajuo sabueyo pue aigels
s| saafo)dws jo Jaquinu ay] ‘seako)dwia
§O Jaguinu ay) u| 9seaJdap Jo ymoldh
yuedyiubis 12adxa jou op am ‘eate siy} uj

‘siabeuew 9¢

Buipmaul ‘zgy sem dnoug 399 ayy ul
saako)dwa Jo Jaquinu abelsae ayy £10Z |

dNOod9 399



*S@1}IUNLWILIOD

pue s1anddns ‘siswolsnd uno 0} ydoeordde jeusissajold e
'951n02 Jo ‘pue saako)dwa Jo ymoub jeuosiad sy} apnjoul Ajulew
as3y] "sanjea dnoig 399 uo pjing A|SNONUIIUDD OSIE 1)IM M

‘onojiod Jawoysno
ano jo Auolew sy yoeoudde Aenpialpul 0y sn ajqeus Ajbuisealoul

1M 3say] Jo)das ABiaua ayy ul suonnjos pue saibojouyss)
wabmayul buisn Aq ‘s)dwiexs Joy ‘saibiauks yaas am a10ja1ay |

‘a1e4ado am Ydiym

ut s8julouodd Jo ssauaaiiadulod ay) o) uollejad uj pue ‘saAl s ajdoad
J0 S109dSe |eJUBWIUOIIAUS pUE 1eld0s 0} uolie)ad ul Ajnigisuodsad
s,40108s ABJaus ay) Jo aleme ale ap Ayiqeureysns Bujob-uo yim
92uepJodde ul paanpoud ssifiisus ageidedde-adiud puokaq adodng
uJe)se] pue JeJlUS) Ul S1awWoIshd sy bulig oy swie dnoub 399 ay]

NOISSIW ANV NOISIA



puny
1BI20S 3y} 0} UoIINqLIU0)

0§87 §
0 Spuapialq

0 sBuluies pauleyay

spolJad snolaaid

000 S¢S 4 WO} S8550] PaIe|NWNIY

puny
9AJ9S3J 9Y) 0) UOIINGLIIUDY

0G% 0ES L £10C Xe} Jo)JE 550] JO Jjoud

:smoY]04 Se s) Buijealy 1edauag ay) oy Apogq £1oyniels
8y} jo Jesodoud 8y "jesausg ayj o} Apoq Aloiniels ayy jo jesododd ay|

"Bunaap esauag ayy Aq paplaap aq 1IIM 057 0€G £ YN JO XE} Ja}je
junowe ayj ul 1,0z poidad Sununoaoe ay) 104 1s01d Jo uonngiasip ay g

£10Z 404 114048d 40 NOILNEIY1SId 3HL ¥04 1vS0d0dd

'S "B 499 40 SNLVLS TVIONVNI4 ANV
Sd01VIIANI JIWONOJ4d d413313S 'L



8E1l 287 66l 0cl €L €71 4n3

100 S¢ ¢00 5¢ an3
672 €99 9€ 0L8¢%5 L4 <IgE]
L8G 8CY 6€ %08 60€ 9¢ dan3
L0G 08E ¢Sl GLl GE8 8LL dn3
645 GY1 ¢6l G6t 1B SLE dnd
0L99¥5 Y - 0G% 0€S 4 dn4d
D6C 7757 - 0EEEES L dn3
G9cee8e- 9L 7lC L- an3
GeG ¢9l - 96C 6LL | qn3
671 £51 6E8 L1 4n3
840606 G €21 6¥9 6§ 4n3
L00 905 ¢ LYE LEEY dn3
£18610€ 656 087 7 an3

salyjlqer]
1endeo pausisibay
Aunb3
Wwadind
JUBIINI-UOU Y3IYM JO
S}9SSE 1B)10|
Xe] JSYe Ss0) / 1jold
XB) 210J9q SS0] / }1J0Jd
AylAnoe ssauisng jo sso) / joid
an|eA pappy
s}asse paxiy Jo uolje1daidap yaiym 4o
51509
S33IAJ3S 40f SB]BS YIIYM 40

SONUIADY

9102 L10Z 1INN J14193dS YOL1VIIANI

SHOLVIIANI ANVAWO3J NIVIN 40 MIIAL3AO



'67% 112 T YN3 4o sisod jeuosiad pue €89 |GG Z ¥NT 40
S3D1A40S aJam 51503 3saybiy ay ) "gZ| 679 G UNT 49Mm £L0Z U
$)500 jeloueul) pue Aleulploed)xa buipn)axa s3sod Auedwo)

‘L7E LEE ¥ HN3J 40 SIIIAISS JO SIBS SBM aleyS
abejuaoied ysaybiy ay) ‘4G4 0LV ¥ NI SEM SanuUaAal JeIDURUL
pue Aseuipioedixe Buipnjoxa yoiym ‘a1n3ondys anuaaal Jo SULIa) Uj

‘0€€ €ES L UN3 Jo X&)
aJojaq pjoud e - nsad jerdueuly e passiyde Auedwod sy} ‘£ 102 Y|

SAINVNI4 ANVAINOD



9LL9 -

09¢ 1L -
T4

697 LE
999 L6l
L66 9L
Ly vie
86€ 961
9Ll ¥§
0Z8 08
841 LEC
08G 741
169 G0OE

8€G L- an3 Jead Jad sso
YZe L- dan3 Xe} 91043 SS07
T4 yn3 1eudes paialsibay
L6C LS dn3d Aunb3
000 6%¢ dn3 $]195Se |B}0] JUBLINI-UON
Y61 68 dn4d $)assy jualuny jejo}
Y61 ¥E¢€ dn3 S}asse 1210}
Geezal 4n3 saljnigei} wia)-buo
%48 04 an3 S31))IGeN) 181243WW0D YIIYM JO
s el dn3 Sa/11iqen wel-1oys
LS8 9LL 4n3d sanliqen jejol
696 202 d3n3 AbBisua 2141288 40 Sa)eS Yaiym Jo
¢ £EE dn3 S3NUBARY

SHOLVIIANI NIVIN S.dN0Y9 IHL 40 MIIAY3IA0

dNO0d9 399 dHL 40 SNLVLS

1AVIONVNI4 ANV SHOLVIIANI JIWONOJ3 d3193713S



"000 716 71 YN3 Jo sadlasas pue saseyaind pue gQg ¥Zy L6Z YN3 40
uondwnsuod Ab1aus atam dnoig 399 ay) Jo 53502 1R}0) ¥saybiy ay |

"000 869 £ ¥N3 $0 1e3Y jo Se|es pue

000 900 66 ¥N3 10 Junowe |ej0} 2y) Ul seb jo sajes Aq pajelauab
os)e sem Jed Juedyiubis v 000 696 Z0Z ¥N3T 0} PAIUNOWE YdIYm
'A}1211129)3 JO 81BS 3Y) Sem SanuaAal s 399 Jo aleys isabuey ay|
"000 #2Z £E€ ¥N3 40 SaNUBASL panalyde dnoug 399 243 £10Z Ul

S3INVNI4 dN0d9



"£6Z 190 Z1 ¥N3 03 bununowe

soljlua paje)ad ade sanigen Jayio jo

Hed yuedyiubis e yoiym Jo ‘0s6 LYL ¥L

dn3 o1 unowe sanniqel) wie)-11oys
s,Auedwo) ay] "€46 028 2L N3 bunielo)
sueo) jueq waa}-buoj pue v g gLE LY

dN3 o1 buijunowe sanijiger waay-buoy ale
sainigen s Auedwod ayi jo 1ed esyubis y

*0Z1 7EL €71 YN 03 pajunowe
LLOZ "ZL “LE o se sanniqen Auedwo)

9%¢ 6LG ¥N3 Jo sjunodde
1eldueuly jo Ajulew s)sisUod s}asse JUallnd

jo yed buiuiewsal ay] "£68 0L0 GE ¥N3
syun Bununoase pajeniyje Wolj S)qeAd8l
19430 '£10 ZL¥ ¥N3 J0 Se1qeataaal apedy Aq

Pal4ndul sigap wJal-14oys ‘G48 €L SE€ ¥N3
10 S9)BAI9ID] WIIB)}-}I0YS 2. S)asse

Jua1an jo uoipod Juediiubis y

%08 60€ 9€ YN Judsaldal sjasse Jualing

‘871 987 HN4d

jo 19sse a)qibue) wis)-buoy e osje s1 wayl
wesyubis v "617 948 L4 ¥N3T Jo slesse
jualind-uaou Jjo uondodoud yuesiiubis e
juasaldal s)asse jenueul) wial-buon

'GL1 S€88LL YN
1230} Auedwod ay) jo s)asse JU3.LINI-UON

'S '8 399

SAILINEVIT ANV SLASSV



‘000 9% LS ¥N3 4o 1e10} e 0} bununowe
sueo) pue 000 758 0Z HN3 03 JUNOWIe Sa1)Iger) 3pe.) Ya1ym Jo
‘000 ZZ5 ¥ZL ¥N3 01 Junowe sapjiger) wasl-Hoys s,dnoig 399

"000 546 LZ1L ¥N3 Bumeloy sueoy yoiym 4o ‘000 GEE ZGL ¥NF J0
saliiqen wisy-buo) aue saniger dnoag 399 jo 1ed yueoyiubls y

"000 LS8 942 ¥N3 03 pajunowe £10Z “Z| L€ Jo se saniqen dnoig 399

"000 Z9S 79 N3 03 parunowe dnoig 399 ay3 Jo

sjasse 2]qiBuejul Jua.IND-UoU JBYIQ “£L0Z U! 000 8SS 8EL N3
0} pajunouwie dnolg 399 3y} Jo S}asse paxy waaj-buo

dN0d9 399 &



‘Auedwod ayy ul bunjesado aue

suoiun apeJ) oN "uonisod yuawdojdwsa 0y puodsaliod 1ey) sujauaq
pue suolipuod bunjiom piepuels yum saakojdwa sapiacud Auedwod
3y "swJiou piea ay) Aq paulaaoh aie suoije)al jeba)-unoqe]

‘peo.qe jiun jeuoljesiuebio ue aaey jou saop Auedwos ay]
‘dnoug 399 2y} IN0JE UOI1BWIOJU| 1UOI}IS
‘A 0y Aue dojanap jou pip Auedwod ay} 3U) Ul papn)oul S| SaI1IAI}DE RJUSWIUOIIAURS JNOGE UOIIBULIOJU)|

avodayv LINN 1VNOILVSINVOY0 dHL ANV
'Y 'SNOILYT13Y 1v93714N09VT LNIWNOYIANT
dH1 0L 9NILV'13d S3ILIAILIV LNO8V NOILVINHO4NI



'ssauIsng
ay} jo souewrloylad je1aurUly 84y }oedWI SBOUBISWNDIID UIENSD
ul Aew yaiym ‘ayqeded Jj1ae) ayy Jo JunoWe ayl Jo uoldnpad e

ul 1ynsad pynod Adusidlye jeuoijedado ay) ul aundap v 'syueld  pue j@yJew wody buisiue sabuayieyd 19aw o3 uoipdadip sibajedys
jueAs|al ay} Jo Aouaidiyye jeuonesado ayy Aq Med ul psulwislep s dnodg ay) 123)}aJ 1}IM JBY] SIUBWISIAUI Mau Jo Juswdojarsp
‘sy)1ae] Ul-paay A1D1399]9 apn]aul senuaaal s,dnoub ay| 3y} Joy a)qisuodsal ag 0} anujuod jm dnodg 395 ayy

‘safiueyd sjwouod90udEW

SAILNIVLIE3dINN ANV SMSIY



"810Z 1890320 ! 1Jodas 1enuue bujidwio jo ajeq (78886 0LE ¥Z1 Nd) G6L GLZ 62 ¥N3 Jo Aligen e pauunaul
Auedwod ay) Yoiym Jo siseq sy} uo ‘pajiwi] yn moy4 399

"000 009 Z ¥N3 pue "0 "0 “Z 'dS Zv9 ®4s1od 399 “0 "0 Z “dS 399 s "e 399
40 2214d 3NSSI Y)IM 0IN3 BUO JO YI0}S UOWWIOD PANSS| MaU JO WO} ‘PRI Z MN 399 ‘PRUWIT YN F99 usamiag paubis sem
3y} ul 's'e J9g awedaq Japjoyaleys 9)0s 8y} ‘gL 0Z AlBnuel |g uQ Juswaalby Juawsas pue uondudsgng e gLz Adenuer || uQ

"$91p0q "S "8 399 J0 SIaGWIalW Ul palnaoo os|e aaey sabuey) ‘zeg Ys)0d 399

AleIpISQNS 2y} J0 S31eys a3y} JO %00 40 19JSUBL} 8Y) PaUISdUOD
"0SL LLL L N1d) £18 18Z MN3 AQ  yeuy) (Jaainboe) "0'0'2 'dS 399 pue (Japirold ayy) 's'e 199 usamiaq
paseaJloul sem (e)ided aieys s 0 "0 'Z 'dS 399 810Z Aenuer £ uQ papnjou0d sem juawaalbe Jajsuel) aleys e gLz Alenuer g€ uQ

‘0°0 "7 "ds 399 suiebe */L0Z 40} S1UBWIB]R)S |BIDUBULY Y] 103)JE 10U Op Jey) 18Y)
JUNOWE 3Wies a3y Jo WIE)D B pue pajiwi] z YN 399 1sulebe  paliinado sjuane juesiiubis Buimono) ey £ |07 48quiadaq g oy

SINIWILVLIS TVIONVNI4 3HL 40 NOILVYVd3dd 40
41VAd dHL ¥314V d34¥N330 LVHL SINJAT 40 MIIAGIAO



‘LL0Z "ZL"LE jose
Sjuawaje)s |eldueuly pue yiodal s Jojipny

*SAXANNY







Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder, Superyisory Board, and Board of Directors of GGE a. s.:

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
GGE a. s. (the “Company”) as at 31 December 2017, and its financial performance for the year then ended
in accordance with the Slovak Act on Accounting No. 431/2002, as amended (the “Accounting Act”).

‘What we have audited

The Company’s financial statements comprise:

e the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

o the income statement for the year then ended;

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Federation of
Accountants ("Code of Ethics™) and other requirements of legislation that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the Slovak Republic. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Reporting on other information in the annual report

Management is responsible for the annual report prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act. The
annual report comprises (a) the financial statements and (b) other information,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the annual report

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o., KaradZiéova 2, Bratislava, 815 32, Slovak Republic
T: +421 (0) 2 59350 111, F: +421 (0) 2 59350 222, www.pwc.con/sk

The company's ID (IE0) No. 35739347,

Tax Identification No. of PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. (DIC) 2020270021,

VAT Reg. No. of PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. (I¢ DPH) SK2020270021.

Spolocnost je zapisana v Obchodnom registri Okresného sidu Bratislava 1, pod viozkou €. 16611/B, oddiel: Sro.
The company is registered in the Commercial Register of Bratislava 1 District Court, ref. No. 16611/B, Section: Sro.
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With respect to the annual report, we considered whether it includes the disclosures required by the
Accounting Act.

Based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

e the information given in the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 is consistent with the
financial statements; and

o the annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the
annual report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Act, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

2/3



.

pwc

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
. »‘)- Kw Q/
\'\ M@V\m\,( ¢ Slm A2 el S g
icewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.0. ® I e.ne . Jozef PEeh(op
SKAU licence No. 161 B, VA licence No. 1190
g 4
v

Bratislava, 2 May 2018, except for Reporting on other information in the annual report, for which the date
of our report is 20 December 2018.

Our report has been prepared in Slovak and in English. In all
matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the

Slovak language version of our report takes precedence over the
English language version.
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. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ]
of entrepreneurs maintaining accounts under the system of double entry bookkeeping
aa31,.12.2 017 (nwholeeuros)
Tax identification number (DIC) Financial statements Accounting entity Month  Year
fro

2120099641 y .o X oot | roveered ™ 1 2017
Identification number (IGO) 012 2017
47267814 extraordinary large ]
SK NACE interim ::;ﬁzding from 1 2016
7 0 . 2 2 . O (vyznadl sa x) to 1 2 2 0 1 6

Attached parts of the financial statements )
X Balance Sheet (Ué POD 1-01) X Income Statement (U POD 2-01) X Notes to the Financial Statements (U8 POD 3-01)
(in whole euros) (in whole euros) (in whole euros or eurocents)

Legal name (designation) of the accounting entity

GGE a. s

Registered office of the accounting entity

Street Number
Pekna cesta 6
Zip code Municipality

83403 Bratislava

Designation of the Commercial Register and company registration number

Okresny Sad Bratislava |
Oddiel: Sa, Vliozka ¢islo:6155/8B

Telephone Fax

0911679842

Email

hujo@gge. sk

Prepared on: Approved on: Signature of the accounting entity's statutory body or
a member of the accounting

24 . 04 . 201 8 0 . 0 . 2018 the signature of a sole trade

Myt

This form in any foreign language cannot be submitted to the Tax office and it is only for the purpose of helping.
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UEPOD 1-01

Stivaha

nm2120099641Wm472

57814

Daalg-
natlon
a

ASSETS
b

Line
No.

[+

Current accounting period

Preceding

1

Gross - part 1

Net 2

accounting period

Correction - part 2

Net 3

TOTAL ASSETS
line 02 + line 33 +
line 74

01

215856240

21528

1395

574845

192145579

Non-current assets

i line 03 + line 11 +
: line 21

02

179169345

17883

5175

334170

162380507

Al

Non-current
Intanglble assets
total (lines 04 to
10)

03

660873

47

2608

188265

563857

Al

Capitalized
development costs
(012) - /072, 091A/

04

Software
(013) - /073, D91AS

05

Valuable rights
(014) - /074, 0O1A/

06

2996

2771

225

Goodwill
(015) - /075, 091A/

07

657877

469837

188040

563857

Other non-current
intangible assets
(018, 01X) - /079,
07X, 091A/

08

Acquisition of non-

© current intangible

assels
(041) - 1093/

09

Advance payments
made for non-

. current Intangible

assels
(051) - J095A/

Al

Property, plant and
equipment
total (lines 12 to 20)

1

625571

48

6148

139423

556265

Adld.

Land
(031) - 10928/

12

277618

27

7618

277618

Structures
(021) - /081, 092A/

13

2600

2534

66

Individual movable
assets and sets of
movable assets

(022) - /082, 092A/

14

340227

20

0870

139357

278647

MF SR &, 18000/2014/ENG

Page 2 =—




g UZPODvi4_3

. Sivaha
UcPOD1-01

m2120099641W®47257814

Dusig-
nation No.
a b c

ASSETS Lina

Current accounting period

Preceding

Gross - part 1

Net 2

accounting period

Correction - part 2

Net 3

4. | Perannial crops 15
(025) - /085, 092A/

5. | Livestock 16
(026) - /086, 092A/

6. | Other property, plant | 17
; and equipment

: (029, 02X, 032) -
1089, 0BX, 092A/

7. | Acquisition of i 18
i property, plant and
equipment '
(042) - f0R4/ !

5126

5126

8. | Advance payments 19
made for property,
. plant and equipment :
. (052) - /095A/ i

9. ! Value adjustmentio | 20
| acquired assets
(+/- 097) +/- 098

Allll. | Non-current 21
financlal assets
total (lines 22 to
32)

177882901

177

876419

6482

1561260385

Shares and

ownership interests | 22

In affillated

accounting entities

,gsm, 062A, 063A) -
O8A/

At

176814219

176

814219

149363900

Shares and owner-
2. | ship interests with 23
participating Interest,
except for affiliated
accounting entities
(062A) - /098A/

3. | Other avallable-for- | 24
sale securities and
ownearship interests
(QB3A) - F036A/

475000

475000

475000

4. | Loans lo affillated 25
accounting entities
(066A) - /096A/

Loans within
participating interest,
except for affillated
accounting entities
(066A) - /096A/

26

800000

6. | Other loans 27
(067A) - /096A/

Debt securities and
cther non-cumrent
financlal assets
(065A, OE9A,06XA) -
J098A/

28

593682

587200

6482

593682

=== MF SR & 18009/2014/ENG

Page3 =
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U& POD 1 - 01

Stvaha

nu‘:2120099641J

ko4 7257814

Deslg-
nation
a

ASSETS
b

Line
No.

[

Current a-t;coumlng period

Gross - part 1

Net 2

Preceding

accounting period

Correction - part 2

Nef 3

Loans and other non-
current financial
assets with remaining
maturity of up lo one

r (068A, DE7A,
ggSA. 06XA) - 10864/

29

27803

Bank aceounts with
notice period
exceeding one year
(22XA)

30

10.

Acquisition of non-
current financial
assets

{043) - /0968A/

31

1.

Advance payments |
made for non-
current financial
assets

(053) - /095A/

a2

Current assote
line 34 +line 41 +
Ilne 53 + line 66 +
line 71

33

36550479

36

309804

240675

39428587

Inventory
total (lines 35 to
40)

563

563

4408

B.I1.

Raw materlal
(112, 119, 11X)
- 1191, 19X/

35

563

563

669

Work in progress
and semi-finished
products

(121, 122, 12X) -
192, 193, 19X/

36

Finlshed goods
(123) - 1194/

37

Animals
{124) - 1185/

38

Merchandise
(132, 133, 13X, 139)
- 1198, 19X/

39

3739

Advance payments
made for

inventory

(314A) - B1A/

40

Non-current
recelvables

total (line 42 + lines
46 to 52)

41

B.IL1.

Trade receivables
total {lines 43 to
45)

42

=== MF SR &. 18008/2014/ENG
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UZPODv14_5

| U& POD 1 - 01

Sdvaha

mc2120099641"|co47257814

Desig-
nation
a

ASSETS
b

Line
No.

Current

unting period

Gross - part 1

Net 2

Preceding

accounting period

Corraction - part 2

Net 3

1.8a.

Trade receivables
from affillated
accounting entities
(311A, 312A, 313A,
314A, 315A, 31XA) -
1391A/

43

1.b.

| entities

Trade recelvables within
participating interest,
except for recelvables
from effiliated accounting

{311A,312A, 3134, 3144,
315A, 31XA)-1991A/

44

1.c

Other trade
receivables

(311A, 312A, 313A,
314A, 315A, 31XA) -
1391A/

45

Net value of contract
(316A)

46

Other receivables
from affiliated
accounting entities
(351A) - /391A/

47

Other receivables
within participating
Inferest, axcept for
recelvables from
affiliated accounting
entities (351A) - /381A/

48

Receivables from
participantz, members
and assoctation
(354A, 355A, 358A,
35XA) - 1391A/

49

Receivables related
to derivative
transactions

(373A, 376A)

50

Other recelvables
(335A, 336A, 33XA,
371A, 374A, 376A,
378A) - 1391A/

51

Deferred tax asset
(481A)

52

Current
racelvables

total (line 54 + lines
58 to 65)

53

356974570

35

733895

240675

329

40931

B.lL1.

Trade recelvables
total (lines 55 to
§7)

660451

472017

188434

3

48970

1a.

1.b.

Trade recelvables
from affiliated
accounting entitles
(311A, 312A, 3134, I
314A, 315A, 31XA) -
391A/

451086

451086

216076

Trade receivables within
particlpating Interest,
except for recelvables
from effiliatad accounting:
entitles

(311A, 312A, 313A, 314A,
I15A, 31XAY-A91AS

56

=== MF SR &. 18009/2014/ENG
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(& POD 1 - 01

Savaha

Desig-
nation
a

ASSETS
b

pE212009964 1

Line |

No.
[

ko47257814

Current accounting period

Gross - part 1

Net 2

Preceding

accounting period

Correction - part 2

Net 3

1.c.

Other trade
recelvables
(311A, 312A, 313A, |
314A, 315A, 31XA) - |
13914/ :

57

209365

20931

188434

-—

32894

Net value of contract
(316A)

58

Other receivables
from affiliated
accounting entities
(351A) - 1391A/

59

36010897

35

010897

32329384

i Other receivables

within participating
Interest, except for
recelvables from
affillated accounting
entitles (351A) - /391A/

60

Receivables from
participants, members
and association
(354A, 355A, 358A,
35XA, 388A) - 391A/

61

Soclal security
(336A) - 1391A/

62

Tax assets and
subsidies

(341, 342, 343, 345,
346, 347) - 13914/

83

11404

Receivables related
to derivative
transactions

{373A, 376A)

©

Other receivables
(335A, 33XA, 37T1A,
374A, 375A, 378A)
- [301A/

65

303222

250981

52241

251173

B.IV.

Current financlal
assets

total (lines 67 to
70)

B.IV.1.

Current financial
assets In affiliated
accounting entities
(251A, 253A, 256A,
257A, 25XA)- 1291A, |
29XA/

67

Current financial assets,
not including current
financlel assets in
affillated accounting
enfitles {251A, 253A,
256A, 257A, 25XA) -
12014, 20XA/

i 68

Own shares and
own ownership
Interests

(252)

69

Acquisition of
current financial

assels
(259, 314A) - /291A/

70

=== MF SR &. 18008/2014/ENG
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= UZPODvi4_7
oveha 1 ie212009964 11047257814
Deelg- | | Linw | urrent accounting perio | racedin
egon | ASE:,ETS | P — Gross j:amt g peres Net 2_ | acc:qgg!n:lgg;l_og___m
* . Correction - part2 = _Net 3
By, | Financisl accounts | 71 575346 575346
6483248
B.V.1. | Cash 72 3175 3175
(211, 213, 21X) 1
5674
2. | Bank accounts 73 572171 572171
(221A, 22X, +/- 261)
6477574
c. %‘ia"."('ﬂr'.'.f."'v??" 74 136416 136416
: 336485
CA1 Prepaid expensas- | 75 8 6 7 0 0 8 6 7 0 0
kong-term . e e ]
(G81A, 3828 111471
2. | prepeld expenses- | 76 49216 49216
short-tarm B
(3814, 3528 175107
3. | Accrued income - T:'h o k
long-term
(385A)
4, ::ﬁlrz&dr::come- 78 - ~ 5 0 O‘ 5 0 0 :

(3854 49907
.'i.'&'.f'.: EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ';',';" Current am:nllng period Precedlng m:unﬂng period
La b N —

T ST LALTES (| 215281395 192145579
e 71542810 366632409
Al | Share capital total (lines 82 to 84) 81 2500 2 25001
AlA. | Share capltal (411 alebo +/- 481) 82 2500 2 25001

2. | Changs In share capilal +/- 419 83
All. | Share premium (412) 85 77059075 49709965
A.lll. | Other capltal funds (413) 86
AV jLeglI raserve funds line 89 + line 89 a7 2 5 0 0 B 2 5 0 0
A oot gy | 88 2500 2500
2| R |
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Us POD 1 - 01
s EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ‘ T Current accounting period Preceding accounting perlod
a b e 4 5
Other funds created from profit
AV. | (ine 81 + line 92 L
AV, | Statutory funds (423, 42X) 91
2. | Other funds (427, 42X) 92
Differences from revalﬁatlon
AVL | total (iines 94 to 96) L
Differences from revaluation of assets
AVL1L| and liabilities (+- 414) =
2 Investment revaluation reserves 95
i (+-415)
71" Differences from revaiuation in the event of .
3. | @ merger, amalgamation into a separate 96
. acsounting entity or demerger (+/- 416)
Neot profitiloss of previous years
AVIL ||ne';a+||neggp Y 97 _13074217 _8527547
Retained eamings from previous years
A1) Retalned eamings from previous % 2181438 2181438
Accumulated losses from previous years
2-([_/429) P ¥ 29 -152556655 -10708985
Net profitiioss for the accounting period
AVINL. | aftor tax /- line 01-(I.B1+ 1L 85+1. 86+ | 100 7530450 -45460670
L87+1.90+193+L97+1.101+L141)
Liabliitles line 102 + line 118 + |ine 121
B. |y line122 +line 136 + line 138 + line 140 | %1 143734120 155482138
Non-current liabllities
B.l. | total (line 103 + lines 107 to 117) 102 47318814 47211742
Non-current trade liabllities
B.L1. | iotaf (lines 104 to 106) 103
ia Trade liabilities to affiliated accounting 104
‘1 entities (321A, 475A, 476A)
Trade liabilities within participating Interest,
1.b.| except for liabilities to affiliated accounting| 105
entities (321A, 475A, 476A)
Other trade liabilities
1.0, (3214, 475A, 476A) 106
2, | Net value of coniract (316A) 107
QOther liabiiitles to affillated accountin
3. | ontitics (AT1A. 47xA) o 108 47300468 47189133
Other liabllities within participating intarest,
4. | except for liabilities to affiliated accounting 109
entities (471A, 47XA)
5. | Other non-current llabilities (479A, 47XA) | 110
6 Long-term advance payments received 111
* | (475A)
7 Long-term bilis of exchange to be paid 112
| (478A)
8. | Bonds issued {(473A/-/255A) 113
9. | Llabllities related to soclal fund (472) 114 18346 22609
10 Other non-current liabilities 15
| (336A, 372A, 474A, 4TXA)
11 Non-current liabllities related to derivative 116
*| tfransactions (373A, 377A)
12.] Deferred tax liability (481A) 117
fe MF SR & 18009/2014/ENG Page§ =




e JZPODv14_9

. Savaha ICo
0 Sovaha k212009964 1 47257814
Deo- EQUITY AND LIABILITIES | N Current accounting period Precading accounting period
a b c 4 5
B.I. : Long-term provisions line 119 +line 120 | 118
B.I1.1. | Legal provisions (451A) 19
2. | Other provisions (459A, 45XA) 120
B.Il. | Long-term bank loans (481A, 46XA) 12 7282099 3 78900697
Current liabllities 1
BAV. | ¢otal (iine 123 + lines 127 fo 135) 122 14741990 23047830
Trade liabllities
B.IV.1.| total (lines 124 to 126) 123 1956816 1919114
Trade Tabilities fo affilated accounting entities
1.a. (321A, 322A, 324A, 325A, 326A, 32XA, 475A, | 124
a) (1A S Sk 129514 238255
Trade liabllities within participating interest,
1D e SSA g4, 305, S00A J2xa, | 125
475A, 4764, 4784, 4TXA) T
Other trade liabilities
1.C.. (321A, 322A, 324A, 325A, 326A, 32XA, 126
R Es T S 1827302 16808529
2. | Net value of contract (316A) 127
Other liabilties to affilated accounting ? )
3. | entities (361A, 36XA, 471A, 47XA) 128 12061293 14333973
Other llabliies within participating interest, |
4. | except for liabilities to affiliated accounting 129
entities (361A, 36XA, 471A, 47XA)
Liabillties to partners and association (364,
5.| 285, 366, 367, 368, 308A, 478A, 479A) 130 41446
Liabllities to employees
6. | (331, 333, 33X, 470A) 4 97586 452259
7. | Liabilities related to social security (336A) | 132 547 45 505809
Tax liabilittes and subsidies
8. | (341, 342, 343, 345, 346, 347, 34X) 153 529881 291895
o Liabilities related to derivative transactions 134
“| (373A, 377A)
| Other liabifities ]
10.1 3724, 379A, 474A, 475, 4794, 47xA) | 138 223 6000000
Short-term provisions |
B.V- | line 137 + line 138 136 579146 297950
B.V.1.! Legal provisions (323A, 451A) 137 84146 35032
2. { Other provislons (323A, 32X, 4584, 45XA) | 138 495000 262918
B.\VI Current bank loans 139 8 2 7 3 1 7 7 6 O 2 3 9 1 9
T (2214, 231, 232, 23X, 461A, 46XA)
Short4erm financlal assistance
B.VIL | (241, 249, 24X, 473A, 1-1255A) 150
Accruals/deforrals
€| total (ilnes 142 to 145) 141 4465 192
Accrued expenses - long-term
(ol (383A) 142
Accrued expenses - short-term
2 | (3san) 143 4198
Deferred income - long-term
3. | (3Bany 144
rred | - short-
4. gi%f:A) ncome - short-term 145 267 192
e MF SR &. 18009/2014/ENG Paged ==
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Vykaz ziskov a strat »
ooz zkovaSiloc 2 12009964 11047257814
Actual data B
:l‘a:?n- Text ﬂ:' Current accounting period Pracading accounting period
S . ¢ 1 2 N
* | sccordimato e ndt e | ot 4343442 2511037
aw 10 ting |
total {Iinas 03 o 09) 02 4430959 3015813
L. (Ré%\:ns%eT;’mmMesaleofmerchandlse 03 1 2 1 0 1 5 0 3 0
i Revenue from the sale of own products 04
© | (601)
| foaz. coey e o o= 05 4331341 2506007
Ch:; In Internal Invento
v (+l3r:gzounT§mup 6‘1'?rl v e
V. | Own work capitelized (account group 62) 07 |
1" Revenue from the sale of non-current } :
. b " 13
| Coient e o e oar 042) | 195% 116
Other operating |
VIL | (644 645, 646, 648, 655, 657) 09 74278 504660
Operating expenses totai line 11 + line
It i 4" i 20 a0 | 2645123 2908076
A Y(CS%it'osfor;;arm“dise sold 1 9 7 6 1 4 1 5 7
Consumed raw materials, energy T
B e on3 s oy e | 72 62702 62543
C. | Value sdjustments to inventory (+/-) (505) | 13
D. | Services (account group 51) 14 2551683 2606862
E. | Personnel expenses total (lines 1610 19) | 15 2 2 1 1 4 4 9 2 3 1 5 4 2 2
E.1. | Wages and salaries (521, 522) 16 1736732 1972201
4 2 Remuneration of board members of 17
* | company or cooperative (523)
3| s son ooy 18 437437 306832
4. | Social expenses (527, 528) 19 372820 363889
F. : Taxes and fees (account group 53) 20 4 7 1 4 2 0 1 8
Amorﬂlzlatlon a;&d valu:'sad]ug’t'rjnents Ito ﬁr;on-nd
G- | Velue adjuarnems 1o propeny. plantand | | 21 174539 153149
squipmen.t (line 22 + lina 23) )
G.1. | Besote and devrociution of propedy, glant | 22 174539 153149
. and equipment (551) __
Value adjustments to non-cument
2. | Intangible assets and property, plant and 23
equipment (+/-) (§53)
(o I f nt te sold
H. | and vaw matorials sold (541, 542) | 4 10825 116
L :th;t)e adjustments to receivables (+/-) 25 6 2 6 1 6 1 8 4 5 4 2
Oth ati
o (543, 544, 545, 546, 548, 54, 555, 557) | 28 556834 080269
R ittt e -1214164 -2893265
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Vykaz ziskov a strat] pi& Ico
ok 2120099641 47257814
b Actual data
Dasig- Une : )
nation Text Ne | Current accounting period Preceding accounting period
a b ¢ 1 2
Added value (line 03 + line 04 + line 05
. +Ilnabs+llne(07)-(llno11+Ilne12+ 28 1719296 =-162525
line 13 + line 14)
Income from financial activities - total
o line 30 + line 31 4 fine 35 + line 38 + line | 29 16407027 6583029
42 + line 43 + line 44
Revenue from the sale of securities and
VIl | ghares (661) =0
I - t fi jal
X | o oty "t rencalsesets | g4 15198000 5262177
Income from securitles and ownership
1X.1. | Interests In affillated accounting entities 32
(BB5A)
Income from securities and ownership
2. | interests within participating Interest, except for| 33
income of affiliated accounting entities (665A) )
Other Income from securities and
3. | ownership interests (665A) % 15198000 5262177
X Income from current financial assets 35
1 fotal {lines 36 to 38)
X1 Income from current financial assets In 36
=" | affilisted accounting enfities (666A)
Income from current financial assets within
2, | pariicipating Interest, except for income of a7
affilisted accounting entities (B66A) _ _
3 Other income from current financial assets 38
" 1 (666A)
XI. | Interestincome (line 40 + line 41) ap 1207897 12291829
Interest i from afflllated il
X1, | Interset negime from afflated accouning | 49 1174585 1193621
2. | Other interest Income (662A) 41 33312 35568
XII. | Exchange rate gains (663) 42 1130 01663
X Gains on revaluation of securities and income 43
* | from derivative fransactions (664, 667)
XIV. | Other income from financial actlvities (668) : 44
nses reiated fo financizi acfivities -
~ !total line 46 +Iline 47 + line 48 + line 49 | 45 7659533 8234054
+ ling 52 + line 53 + lina §4
K. | Securitles and shares sold (561) 46
L Expenses related to current financial 47
" | assets (566)
Y Value adjustments to financlal assets 48
" | (+F) (565)
N. | interest expense (iine 50 + line 51) 49 7463960 7761257
Interest expensas related to affillated
N1 | Sooouniing entities (562A) 50 5499822 5306413
2. | Other interest expenses (S62A) 51 1 9 6 4 1 3 8 2 4 5 4 8 4 4
0. | Exchange rate losses (563) 52 2620 099
Loss on revaluation of securities and
P. | expenses related to derivative transactions | 53
| (684, 567) —]
lat ial
o I ke 192953 471798
fmm—_ MF SR &. 18009/2014/ENG Page 11 ===
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ez v asialoie 2 12009964 10047257814
Actual data

g:::ann- Text Lh::u’ Current accounting period Preceding accounting period

m.,(..a b c 1 2 ™

" | G (ine 29 inedgy | se 8747494 -1651025

~ | e e | o 7633330 -4544290
R. | Income tax (line 58 + line 59) 57 2 8 8 0 2 3 8 0

;1— ”Incometax-current(591.595) :.s; | 2880 2909
2. | Income tax - deferved (+/-) {592) 59 -529
s. ;;aﬂr:‘sefg ?I/Test 9%l)vﬁtlnet loss shares to 60

o | ahortan o) o e 7530450 -4546670

(line 56 - line 57 - line 60)

|— MF SR &. 1800972014/ENG
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Notes U POD 3 - 01 Corporate ID: 47257814
GGE a. s. Tax ID: 2120099641

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2017

prepared in accordance Directive of Ministry of Finance No.23378/2014-74 (FS No.12/2014), about individual
financial statements and the scope of the information to be published in the individual financial statements
of small accounting unit as amended on 2 December 2015 &. MF/19927/2015-74

Part | — GENERAL INFORMATION

1) Basic Information about the company

Name: GGE a. s.

Seat: Peknd cesta 6, 834 03 Bratislava

Legal form: Joint stock company

Date of establishment: incorporated into Commercial Register: 02 June 2015

Main activites of the | rent of the property, bookkeeping, economic, organizational and acc. consulting,
company: agency services

Public Interest entity: GGE a. s. is not public interest entity (§ 2/14 ZoU),

Accounting period: 01.01.2017-31.12.2017

2) Date of approval of the financial statement for the previous accounting period

Company's financial statements for the previous accounting period were approved on 24 October 2017.

3) Legal reason for preparing the financlal statement

The financial statements of the Company at 31 December 2017 have been prepared as ordinary financial statements in
accordance with § 17 Sec. 6 of Act Na. 431/2002 Coll. on Accounting as amended (.Accounting Act”) for the accounting
period from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017.

4) The consolidated group

a) The consolidated financial statements for the largest group of which the consolidated financial statements according
to point b) are part of are prepared by Prudential pic with its seat at Laurence Pountney Hill London EC4R OHH. A copy
of the consolidated financial statements will be made available upon request at the seat of the above stated company.

b) The consolidated financial statements for the smallest group named GGE a. s., of which company is parent company,
are prepared by the Company. A copy of the consolidated financial statements will be made available upon request at
the seat of the above stated company.

5) Subsidiaries, joint controlling influence and assoclates

The Company holds certaln non-current financlal assets In other accounting entities and through these placements the
Company exercises its controlling influence, joint controlling influence or significant influence.
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GGE a. s. Tax ID: 2120099641

The amount of equity at 31 December 2017, the profit or loss for the current accounting period and other information
about these entities are shown in the following table:

Carrying
amount of
Percentage the non-
of sharein Percentag current
registered e of voting Amount of financlal
Business name and seat capital rights equity Profit/loss asseots
Controlling influence
TEPLAREN Pova¥ska Bystrica,
S.I.0. 100% 100% 33,998,960 8,291,109 71,634,000
GGE Trade, a.s. 100% 100% 47,806,396 90,663 47,850,000
GGE Polska GAZ SP. Z.0. 0. 100% 100% 27,943,951 (1,073,591) 27,354,611
Teplo GGE, s.r.o. 100% 100% 4,726,309 473,285 16,015,000
Snina Energy, s.r.o. 100% 100% 772,162 478,870 5,605,000
SOUTHERM, s.r.0. 100% 100% 2,738,445 77,104 3,636,000
GGE d.o.0. BEOGRAD 90% 90% 1,358,069 65,595 1,756,900
V.1. Energy Group a.s. 100% 100% 277,360 61,973 1,750,000
TENERGO Slovensko, a.s. 99% 99% 1,519,718 199,763 1,096,000
GGE SP. Z.0.0. 100% 100% (573,657) {184,958) 95,708
IFM, a.s. 98% 98% 3,269 {17,294) 21,000
GGE Invest, s.r.o. 100% 100% 144,774 9,090 -
Joint contrelling influence
KGJ Invest, a.s. 50% 50% (836,925) (234,911) -
Significant influence
ELGAS, k.s. 1% 1% {1,020,686) (4,326,350) 435,000
ELGAS Energy s.r.o. 10% 10% 3339773 2891118 40,000
Total X X x x 177,289,219
The prior accounting period information is presented in the following table:
Carrying
amount of
Percentage the non-
of share in Percentage current
registered of voting Amount of financiat
Business name and seat capltal rights equity Profit/loss assets
Controlling influence
TEPLAREN Pova?ské4 Bystrica,
s.I.o. 100% 100% 29,713,660 5,010,842 71,634,000
GGE Trads, a.s. 100% 100% 47,806,396 (43,604) 47,850,000
Teplo GGE, s.r.o. 100% 100% 4,579,086 376,203 16,015,000
Snina Energy, s.r.o. 100% 100% 615,191 380,899 5,605,000
SOUTHERM, s.r.o. 100% 100% 2,774,193 147,853 3,636,000
GGE d.o.0. BEOGRAD 90% 90% 136,348 444,714 1,756,900
V.l. Energy Group a.s. 100% 100% 234,956 28,205 1,750,000
TENERGO Slovensko, a.s. 99% 99% 1,500,895 235,268 1,096,000
IFM, a.s. 98% 98% 12,081 2,391 21,000
GGE Invest, s.r.o. 100% 100% 463,984 427,480 -
Joint controlling influence
KGJ Invest, a.s. 50% 50% (602,014) 10,861 -
Significant influence
ELGAS, s.r.o* 1% 1% 13,608,405 10,940,650 435,000
ELGAS Energy s.r.o. 10% 10% 451,618 352,355 40,000
Total x x X x 149,838,900

*The legal form of the entity transformed to limited partnership as of 1 March 2017.
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GGE a. s.

6) Number of staff

Corporate ID: 47257814
Tax ID: 2120099641

item Current accounting | Previous accounfing
period period
Average number of staff during the accounting period 33 30
Part l - THE COMPANY’S BODIES AND SHAREHOLDERS
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Board of Directors
Chairman Alberto Signori Alberto Signori
Vice chairman Max Helmore Max Helmore
Mathieu Lief Mathieu Lief
Steven Johnson Steven Johnson
Members Pavol Bero Pavol Bero
Rudolf Pradla Rudolf Pradia
Miroslav Straz Miroslav Straz
Roland Téth
Supervisory Board
Chairman Martin Lennon Martin Lennon
Members Paulo Ruzzini Paulo Ruzzini

Dominik Radziwill
Stephen Nelson

Dominik Radziwill
Stephen Nelson

No guarantees or other guarantees, loans, forgiven loans, written off loans were provided to the statutory body and the
supervisory body
The Company’s shareholders

The structure of the Company’s shareholders at 31 December 2017:

Other share in
equity items other

Share of the registered capital Percentage of than registered
Shareholder Absolute In % voting rights capital %
GGE UK 2 LIMITED 25,002 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %
Total 25,002 100.00% 100.00% 100.00 %
The structure of the Company’s shareholders at 31 December 2016:
Other share in
. equity items other
Share of the registered capital Percentage of than registered
Shareholder Absolute in% voting rights capital %
GGE UK 2 LIMITED 25,001 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00%
Total 25,001 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Part lil ~ACCOUNTING METHODS APPLIED

1) Basis of preparation

The Company keeps its books on the accrual basis of accounting which means that all revenues and costs are recognized
when generated or incurred and not when cash is received or paid, and they are recorded in the books in the periods to
which they relate.

All monetary amounts in the financial statements are stated in whole eurocs, unless stated otherwise.

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Slovak Accounting Act and related
accounting procedures, on a going concern basis.

2) Method of valuation of assets and liabllities
a. Non-current intangible and tangible assets

Acquired non-current assets are stated at cost, which includes the acquisition price and the related acquisition costs
(such as customs duty, transport, assembly, insurance etc.).

Non-current intangible assets - goodwill is depreciated according to depreciation plan which has been prepared in
accordance with Act on Accounting, therefore is depreciated using a straight line method over 7 years. Depreciation
begins as of the first day of the month in which the asset was first put into use. Non-current intangible assets with an
acquisition cost (or their own cost) not exceeding EUR 2,400 are not recorded on the balance sheet and are expensed
immediately when put into use.

Non-current tangible assets are depreciated according to depreciation plan which has been prepared on the basis of
their expected economic useful lives relating to the recovery of future economic benefits from these assets. Depreciation
begins as of the first day of the month in which the asset was first put into use, using the straight-line method in line with
depreciation groups:

Group 1 -4 years
Group 2 - 6 years
Group 3 - 8 years
Group 4 - 12 years
Group 5 - 20 years
Group 6 -40 years

Non-current tangible assets with an acquisition cost (or their own cost) not exceeding EUR 1,700 are not recorded on
the balance sheet and are expensed immediately when put into use

b. Goodwill

Goodwill is recognised upon a purchase or contribution of & business or part thereof provided that the purchase price or
recognised amount of the contribution is higher than the fair value of individual identifiable assets and liabilities at which
the assets and liabilities are measured in buyer's books or in the books of the acquirer of the contribution. Negative
goodwill is credited to acc. 015-Goodwill. When accounting for goodwill, the amount must be determined by which future
economic benefits will be increased in relation to goodwill and/or decreased in relation to negative goodwilll. If it is
probable that any future increase of economic benefits will be lower than the amount of goodwill posted to ace. 015 -
Goodwill, the relevant part of goodwill is written off upon purchase or the contribution of the business or part thereof. The
resulting negative goodwillt Is expensed Immediately and credited to acc. 551 — Depreciation of non-current intangible
and tangible assets with corresponding debit entry to acc. 075 — Accumulated depreciation of goodwill.

Goodwill is recognized upon a merger, fusion or split provided that the book value of the share of the participating entity
in the other participating entity is higher than the fair value of assets and liabilities relating to that share. The book value
upon merger or split is understood to be the amount of the share measured at fair value. Negative goodwill is credited to
acc. 015 — Goodwill. The amount of the increase of future economic benefits resuiting from goodwill and/or a decrease
of future economic benefits resulting from negative goodwill must be ascertained when accounting for goodwill. If it is
probable that any future increase of economic benefits will be higher than the amount of goodwill posted to ace. 015 -
Goodwill, the relevant part of goodwill is amortised in full upon a merger, fusion or split. The resulting negative goodwill
is expensed in full and credited to acc. 551 — Depreciation of non-current intangible assets and non-current tangible
assets with a corresponding debit entry to acc. 075 — Accumulated depreciation of goodwill.
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For an in-kind contribution, such as part of a business (“contribution of husiness”), the acquirer of the contribution
accounts for individual identifiable assets and liabilities in the relevant accounts and measures them at fair value. The
difference between the fair value of individual identifiable assets and liabilities and the amount of a contribution in-kind
(*recognized amount of the contribution®) is accounted for, according to its nature, as goodwill or negative goodwill in
acc. 015 — Goodwill.

For further information about goodwill refer to part IV. point 1)

¢. Non-current financlal assets

When acquired, securities and ownership interests are stated at cost, which includes the acquisition price and the related
acquisition costs.

The Company records securities and intercompany shares, realisable securities and shares, debt securities held to
maturity and other financial investments. The Company valuates decrease in securities, in case of the same type of
security and from the same issuer and same currency, by the weighted average price.

At the balance sheet date, the Company performs analysis of fair value of securities and ownership interests in
subsidiaries and associates. In case of temporary decrease of fair value of securities and ownership interests in
subsidiaries and associates impairment provision is created to decrease its net realisable value. Impairment provision is
released if the risk pass away. Changes in the fair value of securities and ownership interests that comprise a share of
the registered capital of another company and are not securities and ownership interests in a subsidiary or a company
with a substantial influence are recorded, to financial expenses affecting income.

d. Inventories

Acquired inventories are stated at cost, which includes the acquisition price and the related acquisition costs (such as
custons duty, transport, insurance and commission, etc.) less discounts. A discount granted to inventories already sold
or used Is accounted for as the reduction of costs of inventories sold or used. The Company used method A for the
accounting treatment of inventories. For stock withdrawal, the the FIFO-methed is used.

If the acquisition or production cost of inventories is higher than their net realizable value at the balance sheet date, a

valuation allowance for inventories Is set up in the amount of the difference between their book value and their net
realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated sales price of inventories less the estimated costs for their

completion and costs related to their sale.

e. Financial accounts

Financial accounts consist of cash and bank account balances, where the risk of changes in the value of these assets is
negligibly low.
f. Recelvables

When initially recognized, receivables are stated at their nominal value. A valuation allowance is set up for bad and
doubtful debts, for which a default risk exists.

If the remaining period to maturity of a receivable is longer than one year, a valuation allowance representing the
difference bstween its nominal and present value is set up. The present value of a receivable is calculated as the sum of
future discounted cash receipts.

g. Prepald expenses and accrued income

Prepaid expenses and accrued income are recognized at an amount reflecting the accrual principle (matching income
and expense in the same accounting period).
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h. Llabilities Including loans

When initially recognized, liabilities are stated at their nominal value. Assumed liabilities are stated at cost. If reconciliation
procedures reveal that the actual amount of liabilities differs from the amount stated in the books, these liabilities are
stated in the books and financial statements at this actual amount.

i. Provisions

Provisions are liabilities representing the Company’s present obligation resulting from past events, if it is probable that
its settliement will reduce the Company’s resources in the future. Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount,
and are stated at the expected amount of the existing liability at the balance-sheet date.

The set-up of a provision is posted to the respective expense account or asset account to which the liability relates. The
use of a provision is debited to the respective provision account, with a corresponding credit to the respective liability
account. The release of an unnecessary provision, or a part thereof, is accounted for using an accounting entry inverse
to the recognition of the set-up of the provision.

The Company set up provisions for untaken holiday, bonuses and audit of financial statements.

j. Employee benefits

Wages, salaries, contributions to the Slovak state pension and social insurance plans, paid annual leave and paid sick
leave, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits (such as medical care) are recognized in the accounting period when
incurred.

k. Income tax due

Corporate income tax is expensed in the period when the tax liability arises. In the accompanying income statement, the
tax expense is calculated on the basis of the profit/ (loss) before taxes adjusted for tax-deductible and tax non-deductible
items due to permanent and temporary adjustments to the tax base and any tax losses carried forward. The tax liability
is statad net of corporate income tax advances that the Company paid during the year. If corporate income fax advances
paid during the year exceed the tax liability for the period, the Company records an income tax receivable.

|. Defarred income tax
Deferred income tax arises from temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities presented
in the balance sheet and their tax base.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized.

To determine deferred income tax, tax rates expected to apply at the date on which the deferred tax is settled are used.

Deferred tax is not applied on goodwill or negative goodwill on initial recognition. Deferred tax is applied to temporary
differences related to goodwill or negative goodwill when the differences arise after its Initial recognition (e.g. due to
different tax and book depreciation charges) if no temporary differences arose on the initial recognition of goodwill or
negative goodwill.

m. Accrued expenses and deferred revenues

Deferred revenues and accrued expenses are stated at their nominal value and are stated at an amount reflecting the
accrual principle (matching income and expenses in the same accounting period).

n. Foreign currency

Assets and liabilities in foreign currency {with the exception of prepayments received and granted) are converted to euros
using the reference exchange rate set and published by the European Central Bank or the National Bank of Slovakia on
the day preceding the day of the accounting event, or on the balance-sheet date. The resulting foreign exchange
differences are recorded to the income statement.

o. Expense recognition
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Cost of services received a recognized net of VAT.

Interest expense are recognized straight line over the accounting periods using the accrual basis.

p. Revenue recognition

Revenues from the sale of goods are recognized upon transferring risks and rewards of ownership of the goods, usually
when the goods are delivered. If the Company agrees to transport goods to a specific location, revenue is recognized
when the goods are passed to the customer at the destination point.

Revenues from the sale of services are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered, taking
into account the extent to which the given transaction is completed. This extent is assessed based on the actual services
provided as a proportion of the total services agreed.

Sales revenues are stated net of VAT, discounts and deductions (such as rebates, bonuses and credit notes). Interest
income is recognized straight line over the accounting periods using the accrual basis. Dividend income is recognized
when the right of the Company to receive the payment is established.

The Company’s revenues primarily include revenues from the sale of services for subsidiaries.

Part IV — INFORMATION SUPPORTING THE INCOME STATEMENT ITEMS

ASSETS

1) Non-current intangible assets

Company recognized a non-current intangible assets - Goodwill, which arose in the revaluation of the assets and liabilities
of the dissolving companies due to merger of the companies GGE a.s. (corporate ID: 36 746 941) and ARTMEDIA, as.
(corporate 1D: 31 397 042) and Gerlach Bidco, a.s. (corporate ID: 47 257 814) as at 1 January 2016. The successor
company is Gerlach Bidco, a.s. (currently renamed to GGE a. s.).

Goodwill was calcutated in amount of EUR 857,877. The company chose to depreciate goodwill during the estimated
useful life of the property, i.e., 7 years.

2) Non-current tangible assets

Non-current tangible assets are pledged as collateral in favour of UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.

3) Non-current financlal assets

In 2017 and 2016 Company did not account for non-current financial assets hedged by derivatives. Non-current financial
assets are pledged as collateral in favour of UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.
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4) Loans provided

An overview of loans provided is presented in the following table:

Corporate ID: 47257814
Tax 1D: 2120099641

Annual Principal in EUR

Item Currency in:n:.‘.«:;np. Maturity date 31.12.2017 31.12.2016
Long-term loans: 0 0
Short-term loans, of which: 32,891,421 32,329,384
TEPLAREN Pova#ska On demand

Bystrica, s.r.0. EUR 3,503 20,088,605 20,088,486
Teplo GGE s.r.o. EUR 4,003 On demand 4,925,043 4,925,038
Snina Energy, s.r.o. EUR 4,003 On demand 2,476,228 2,716,628
SOUTHERM,, s.r.0. EUR 4,003 On demand 2,284,643 2,284,643
GGE SP.Z0.0. EUR 4 On demand 1,586,487 1,135,466
Elgas Energy SP, Z.0.0. EUR 4 31.12.2018 859,803 0
IFM, a.s. EUR 4,003 On demand 0 75,910
KGJ Invest, a.s. EUR 5 On demand 670,612 644,261
TENERGO Slovensko, a.s. EUR 4,093 On demand 0 75,975
GGE d.o.o EUR 4,093 On demand 0 382,977
Total X x x 32,891,421 32,329,384

Short term loans are provided to subsidiaries. From total amount of EUR 35,010,897 are receivables from dividends EUR
2,119,476. From table above, interest is in amount of EUR 1,174,591,

5) Llabilities

In 2017 the Company did not account for long-term liabilities with maturity more than 5 years.

Total amount of secured liabilities as at 31.December 2017 is EUR 81,094,170 (2016: EUR 84,924,6186), out of which
EUR 80,980,194 (2016: EUR 84,760,936) is pledges as collateral in favour of UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and
Slovakia, a.s., except for assets which is pledged as collateral in favour of VOLKSWAGEN Finanéné sluzby Slovensko
s.1.0. for liabilities from autocredit loans in amount of EUR 113,876 (2016: EUR 163,680).

6) Bank loans and debt securities issued

An averview of principal of bank loans is presentad in following table:

Annual

Principal in EUR

Maturity

Int . a.

L Currency Interestp.a. = gate 31122017 31.12.2016
Long-term loans, of which: 72,757,822 78,788,312
UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC EURIBOR + 21.09.202

AND SLOVAKIA EUR 29, 0 11,286,450 17,520,300
UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC EURIBOR + 21.09.202

AND SLOVAKIA EUR 2.25% 0 61,471,372 61,268,012
Short-term loans, of which;: 8,173,850 5,906,250
UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC EURIBOR + 21.09.202

AND SLOVAKIA EUR 29, 0 8,173,850 5,906,250
Total 80,931,672 84,694,562
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7} Loans recelved

An overview of loans received is presented in following fable:

Corporate ID: 47257814
Tax ID: 2120099641

c : Annual Maturity d Principal in EUR

Ite st p. a. a

m urrency Interselp-a. Maturltydate 31122017 31.12.2016
Long term: 54,042,551 47,189,133
GGE UK 2 LIMITED EUR 10 21.09.2030 47,300,468 47,189,133
Short term, of which: 12,061,293 14,333,973
GGE UK 2 LIMITED EUR 10 21.09.2030 6,744,144 8,044,244
ELGAS, k. s. EUR 4 On demand 0 2,237,250
zfz'-AREN Povaiska Bystrica, EUR 3,503  On demand 3,542,951 3,027 269
TENERGO Slovensko, a.s. EUR 4 31.12.2018 100,000 0
GGE Invest, s.1.0. EUR 4 31.12.2018 66,797 0
TEPLO GGE, s.r.o. EUR 5 31.12.2018 718,027 0
SOUTHERM, s.r.o. EUR 4,090 On demand 889,374 1,025,210
Total 59,361,761 61,523,106

These loans were granted by subsidiaries or parent company. Total amount of loans received is EUR 59,361,761, of
which EUR 5,498,037 is unpaid interest.

8) ltems of expenses and revenues extraordinary in scope or occurrence

Company did not recognized revenue or expense items extraordinary in scope or occurrence in 2017.

Part V — OTHER ASSETS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

1a) Contincent assets— no events occurred during the accounting period which would trigger the existence of contingent
asset.

1b) Continnent liabilities ~ no events occurred during the accounting period which would trigger the existence of
contingent asset.

A contingent liability is:

a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirned only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised on balance sheet because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Many areas of Slovak tax law (such as transfer-pricing regulations) have not been sufficiently tested in practice, so there
is some uncertainty as to how the tax authorities would apply them. The extent of this uncertainty cannot be quantified.
The uncertainty will be reduced only if legal precedents or official interpretations are available. The Company's
management is not aware of any circumstances that may give rise to a future material expense in this respect.

The Company does not record other financial liabilities not recognized in the financial statements that would result in a
statutory or contractual obligation to withdraw a certain amount of product, investment, or major repairs.
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Part VI — POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
(Subsequent events)
After 31 December 2017 until the date of Financial Statements preparation occurred following significant events:

On 3 January 2018, a Share Transfer Agreement between the GGE a. s. (seller) and the GGE SP z. o. o. (buyer) was
concluded. Subject of the contract was the transfer of 100% of the share of the subsidiary GGE Polska Gaz.

On 11 January 2018, a “Subscription and settlement agreement” was signed between GGE UK 1 Limited, GGE UK 2
Limited, GGE a. s., GGE 8P, Z.0.0., GGE Polska GAZ Sp. Zoo. and GGE Flow UK Limited, on the basis of which the
Company incurred a liability of EUR EUR 29,775,195 (PLN 124,370,988.84) against GGE UK 2 Limited and a claim in
the same amount against GGE Sp. Zoo.

On 3 January 2018, the share capital of GGE Sp z.0.0. was increased in amount of EUR 281,817 (PLN 1,177,150).
There have been also changes in the members of the bodies of GGE a. s.

On 31 January 2018 was increased share capital of GGE a. s. in the form of new issued common share in amount of
EUR 1 with issue rate of EUR 2,599,999.

No other facts that needed to be disclosed in the financial statements have occurred.
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Translation note:
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representation of the original. However, in all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions,
the original language version of the financial statements takes precedence over this translation.



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board, and Board of Directors of GGE a. s.:

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of GGE a. s. and its subsidiaries (together - the “Group”) as at 31 December
2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

What we have audited

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International Federation of
Accountants ("Code of Ethics") and other requirements of legislation that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Slovak Republic. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Reporting on other information in the consolidated annual report

Management is responsible for the consolidated annual report prepared in accordance with the Slovak Act
on Accounting No. 431/2002, as amended (the "Accounting Act"). The consolidated annual report
comprises (a) the consolidated financial statements and (b) other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information.

T: +421 (0) 2 59350 111, F: +421 (0) 2 59350 222, www.pwec.com/sk

The company's ID {ICO) No. 35739347.

Tax Identification No. of PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.0. (DIC) 2020270021.

VAT Reg. No. of PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o. (I¢ DPH) $K2020270021.

Spolognost je zapisana v Obchodnom registri Okresného sGdu Bratistava 1, pod vioZkou & 16611/B, oddiel: Sro.
The company is registered in the Commercial Register of Bratistava 1 District Court, ref. No. 16611/B, Section: Sro.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
consolidated annual report and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

With respect to the consolidated annual report, we considered whether it includes the disclosures
required by the Accounting Act.

Based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit, in our opinion:

e the information given in the consolidated annual report for the year ended 31 December 2017 is
consistent with the consolidated financial statements; and

e the consolidated annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act.

In addition, in light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we are required to report if we have identified material misstatements in the
consolidated annual report. We have nothing to report in this respect.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the
European Union, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

A [T

rkoN

UDVA licence No. 1190

PricewaterhouseCoopers Slovensko, s.r.o}
SKAU licence No. 161

which the date of our report is 20 December 2018.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

In thousands of EUR Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
ASSETS
Non-currant assets
Property, plant and equipment 7 138,558 93,634
Goodwill 8 38,707 38,031
Other intangible asssts e 64,562 63,842
Financial investments 11 32 21
Deferred income tax assets 27 2,434 988
Other receivables 14 707 1,040
Total non-current assets 245,000 197,656
Current assets
Inventories 13 3,171 3,598
Trade and other receivables 14 66,273 54,206
Current income tax receivables 125 70
Financial investments 11 997 982
Restricted cash 12 322 6,336
Cash and cash equivalents 15 18,266 11,789
Total current assets 89,154 76,991
TOTAL ASSETS 334,154 274,647
EQUITY
Share capital 17 25 25
Legal reserve fund 18 3 3
Capital funds and other reserves 18 77,176 49,837
Retained eamings {20,228) (12,723)
Equity attributable to the Company’s

owners 56,976 37,142
Non-controlling interest 31 321 327
TOTAL EQUITY 57,297 37,469
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 121,975 127,219
Deferred income tax liabllities 27 23,532 23,159
Non-current government grants 554 579
Other non-current liabilities 21 6,274 5,401
Total non-current liabilities 152,335 156,358
Current liabllities
Borrowings 19 51,464 16,980
Trade and other payables 20 70,854 54,116
Finance lease liabilities 1,347 60
Current income tax payables 475 2,944
Current government grants 26 26
Other current liabilities 21 356 6,694
Total current llabilities 124,522 80,820
TOTAL LIABILITIES 276,857 237,178
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 334,154 274,647

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

1 January 2017 ~
31 December 2017

1 January 2016 —
31 December 2016

In thousands of EUR Note
Revenue 22 333,224 305,691
Net gains or losses from commodity derivatives 30 2,673 (2,626)
Energy consumption 23 (291,424) (245,216)
Consumables and services 24 (14,914) {17,390)
Labour and related expenses 25 (9.887) {9,921)
Depreciation and amortisation 7,9 {17,342) (18,080)
Other operating income 26 568 589
Other operating expenses 28 (2,553) (3,741)
Interest income 96 116
Interest expense (7,801) (8,754)
Goodwill impairment 8 = (1,509)
Other finance gains 225 -
Other finance losses (89) (409)
Loss before income tax (7,224) (1,260)
Income tax expense 27 (314) (5,516)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (7,538) (6,776)
Other comprehensive loss:
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Translation of financial information of foreign operations to
presentation currency (21) (12)
Other comprehensive loss for the year (21) (12)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (7,559) (6,788)
Loss [s attributable to:
Owners of the Company (7,532) (6,854)
Non-controlling interest (6) 78
Loss for the year (7,538) (6,776)
Total comprehensive loss is attributable to:
Owners of the Company (7,553) (6,866)
Non-controlling interest (6) 78
Total comprehensive loss for the year (7,559) {6,788)
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

Foreign Non
Legal currency controll  Total

Share Share reserve translation Retained ing equity
fn thousands of EUR Note capital premium fund reserve  earnings  Tofal Interest
Balance at 1 January
2016 25 49,867 3 (18) {5,867) 44,010 191 44,201
Loss for the year - - - - (6,854) (86,854) 78 (6,776)
Other comprehensive
loss - - - (12) - (12) - (12)
Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - {(12) {6,854) (6,866) 78 (6,788)
Other movements - - - - (2) (2) 58 56
Balance at 31
December 2016 25 49,867 3 (30) (12,723) 37,142 327 37,469
Loss for the year - - - - (7,532) (7,532) (6) (7,538)
Other comprehensive
loss - - - (21) - (21) - (21)
Total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - (21) (7,532) (7,553) (6) (7,559}
Shareholder
contribution 33 - 27,360 - - - 27,360 - 27,360
Other movements - - - - 27 27 - 27
Balance at
31 December 2017 25 77,227 3 {51) (20,228) 56,976 321 57,297

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

1 January 2017 - 1 January 2016 -

in thousands of EUR Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before income tax (7,224) (1,260)
Adjustments for:

Depraciation and impairment of property, plant and

equipment 7 6,490 7,484
Amortisation and impairment of other intangible assets 9 10,852 10,606
Impairment of trade and other receivables 14 229 944
Income from receivables write-off and cession 14 76 {271)
Amortisation of government grants (26) -
Provision for overconsumption of CO2 (48) -
Impairment of goodwill - 1,509
Losses less (gains) on disposals of property, plant and

equipment 106 5
Unrealised losses less gains on commodity derivatives 1,363 3,565
Interest income (96) (116)
Interest expense 7,801 8,754
Other non-cash operating income / (expenses) 8 (648}
Margin eamed on construction of service concession asset - (79)
Foreign exchange translation differences (21) (8}
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 19,511 30,485
Increase/(decrease) in frade and other receivables 14 6,183 (12,705)
Increase/{decrease) in inventories 13 808 (2,194)
Increase in frade and other payables 20 (815) 9,473
Decrease in other liabilities 21 (1,180} (193)
Changes in working capital 4,906 (5,619)
Income taxes pald 27 (5,685) (2,055)
Interest received 87 116
Interest paid (11,467) {3,677)
Net cash generated by operating activities 7,442 19,250
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment 7 (2,680) (2,840)
Purchases of intangible assets 9 (1,834) (1,565)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 543 -
Loand granted to related parties - (127)
Net transfer to or from a restricted cash account 12 - 414
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired 33 1,878 {3,671}
Net cash used in investing actlvities {2,093) {7,789)
Cash flows from financing actlvities

Proceeds from borowings 19 8,199 4,381
Repayment of borrowings 19 (7,070) (12,425)
Net cash generated by / (used in) financing activities 1,129 (8,044)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents 6,477 3417
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the

period 15 11,789 8,372
Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the perlod 15 18,266 11,789

The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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1 Introduction

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union for the period ended 31 December 2017 for GGE
a. s. (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group"), pursuant to Article 22 of Act 431/2002 on
Accounting.

On 23 June 2016, the company Gerlach Bidco, a.s. and its subsidiaries GGE a.s. and ARTMEDIA, as.
concluded a merger agreement, under which the companies GGE a.s. and ARTMEDIA, a.s. legally merged
into the company Gerlach Bidco, a.s. and the legal successor assumed all the rights and obligations of its
merged subsidiaries as of the effective date of 1 January 2016. Effective from 13 August 2016, Gerlach
Bidco, a.s. changed its business name to GGE a. s.

The Company's parent company is GGE UK 2 Limited which is ultimately controlled by Prudential plc. The
Group's ultimate parent produces consolidated financial statements that are available for public use at its
registered seat in London, Laurence Pountney Hill, United Kingdom, EC4R OHH.

The Company is not a shareholder with unlimited liability in any company.

The Group employed 482 staff as of 31 December 2017 (2016: 335 staff), of which 36 were managers
{2016: 35 managers).

Principal activity. The Group’s principal business activities are within the energy sector in several Central
and Eastern European markets, with the focus on the following range of products and services:

- Production and distribution of heat;

- Production and distribution of electricity;

- Gas and electricity supply;

- Construction services in the energy sector.

The Group’s heat power plants and distribution networks are located in the Slovak Republic and in Poland
in the following municipalities; PovaZska Bystrica, Snina, Zeliezovce, Bratislava, Dunajska Streda, Sered,
Siemianowice Slaskie, Tarnowskie Géry, Pyskowice, Praszka, Odolanéw and Wysogotowo. In addition to
generation and distribution of heat and electricity the Group trade with electricity and gas in both Slovak
and Polish market. Outside the Slovak Republic and Poland, the Group is currently present in the Czech
Republic, Serbia and Hungary. In the Czech Republic and Serbia, the Group's principal activity is a supply
of electricity and gas and provision of services. In Hungary, the Group operates as a supplier of electricity
and gas.

Registered address and place of business. The Company’s registered address is Pekna cesta 6, 834
03 Bratislava, Slovakia.

Members of the Company’s Bodies.

Body Function 31 December 2017 31 December 2016

Board of Chairman Alberto Signori Alberto Signori

Directors
Member Stephen Nelson (till 24 October 2016)
Member Mathieu Llef Mathieu Lief
Member Max Helmore Max Helmore (from 21 July 2016}
Member Pavol Bero Roland Toth (from 21 July 20186)
Member Rudolf Pradla Pavol Bero (from 21 July 2016)
Member Miroslav Struz Rudolf Pradla (from 21 July 2016)
Member Miroslav Struz (from 21 July 2016)
Member Steven Johnson Steven Johnson (from 25 October 2016)

Supervisory Chairman Martin Lennon Martin Lennon (from 21 July 2016)

Board Member Ed Clarke (till 20 July 2016}
Member Paollo Ruzzini Milton Fernandes (till 24 October 2016)
Member Dominik Radziwill Paolo Ruzzini {from 21 July 2016)
Member Steven Nelson Dominik Radziwill (from 21 July 2016)
Member Steven Nelson {from 25 Cctober 2016)

Presentation currency. These consolidated financial statements are presented in Euro ("EUR") rounded
to thousands, unless otherwise stated.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS as adopted by
the EU") under the historical cost convention, as modified by the fair value revaluation of derivative
instruments at fair value through profit or loss. The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated (refer to Note 4).

Management reserves the right to amend these financial statements after authorising them for issue.
According to § 16, Sections 9 to 11 of the Slovak Accounting Act (Act No. 431/ 2002 as amended),
an entity’s accounting records cannot be reopened after the financial statements have been prepared and
approved. if, after the financial statements have been approved, management discovers that
the comparative information is not consistent with the current period’s information, the Accounting Act
allows entities to restate comparative information in the accounting period in which the relevant facts are
identified.

The preparation of the financial statements in line with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires the use
of certain accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or compiexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. in December 2017,
the Group acquired GGE Polska Gaz sp. z o.0. (group Duon) from its parent in the transaction under
common control and as part of the acquisition the Group acquired a significant related party loan of EUR
30 million (refer to Note 33). The loan is presented as short-term as it was refinanced with the long-term
loan from the parent company in 2018 {refer to note 38). However, as a result of Duon acquisition, the
Group’s current liabilities exceed its current assets by EUR 35 million at 31 December 2017. The ability of
the Group to continue its operations depends on its ability to generate sufficient funds from operations. The
Group earned positive EBITDA (profit before tax, interest, depreciation and amortisation), positive cash
flows from operating activities, and net increase in cash and cash equivalents in the periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements. During the periods presented, the Group met the financial
covenants per its bank facilities agreement related mainly to the leverage and debt service, refer to Note
35. The Group management believes that sufficient funds will be generated in the future to repay the
liabilities as they become due.

Based on the factors described above, the Group’s management believe that the Group will continue trading
as a going concern.

Since 1 January 2016 an amendment to the act no. 513/1991 Commercial Code (paragraph 67) has come
into effect in Slovakia which defines specific situations when a legal entity is considered as “company in
crisis”. The main factors considered are 1) ratio between the equity and liabilities, 2) insolvency and over-
indebtedness. The legal entity that meets the definition of the company in crisis faces certain legal
obligations for management of that company and limitations on what those companies are allowed to do
for example in relation to repayments of related party loans. The subsidiary ELGAS, k.s. has met the criteria
described above during the year 2017 and the Group management plans fo take measures in 2018 to
remedy this situation.

Consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are those investees, including structured entities, that
the Group controls because the Group (i) has power to direct the relevant activities of the investees that
significantly affect their returns, (i} has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investees, and (jii) has the ability to use its power over the investees to affect the amount of the investor's
returns. The existence and effect of substantive rights, including substantive potential voting rights, are
considered when assessing whether the Group has power over another entity. For a right to be substantive,
the holder must have a practical ability to exercise that right when decisions about
the direction of the relevant activities of the investee need to be made. The Group may have power over
an investee even when it holds less than the majority of the voting power in an investee. In such a case,
the Group assesses the size of its voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other
vote holders to determine if it has de-facto power over the investee.
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Protective rights of other investors, such as those that relate to fundamental changes of the investee’s
activities or apply only in exceptional circumstances, do not prevent the Group from controlling an investee.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group (acquisition date)
and are deconsolidated from the date on which control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries other
than those acquired from parties under common control. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any non-controlling interest.

The Group measures non-controlling interest that represents present ownership interest and entitles
the holder to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liguidation on a transaction by transaction
basis, either at: (a) fair value, or (b) the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of net assets of the
acquiree. Non-controlling interests that are not present ownership interests are measured at fair value.

Goodwill is measured by deducting the net assets of the acquiree from the aggregate of the consideration
transferred for the acquiree, the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of an
interest in the acquiree held immediately before the acquisition date. Any negative amount (‘negative
goodwill" or a “bargain purchase”) is recognised in profit or loss, after management reassesses whether it
identified all the assets acquired and all the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed and reviews the
appropriateness of their measurement.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports in the financial statements provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, the Group retrospectively adjusts the
provisional amounts recognised at the acquisition date to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected the measurement
of the amounts recognised as of that date. During the measurement period, the Group also recognises
additional assets or liabilities if new information is obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as
of the acquisition date and, if known, would have resulted in the recognition of those assets and liabilities
as of that date. The measurement period ends as soon as the Group receives the information it was seeking
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date or learns that more information is not
obtainable. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

The consideration transferred for the acquires is measured at the fair value of the assets given up, equity
instruments issued and liabilities incurred or assumed, including the fair value of assets or liabilities from
contingent consideration arrangements, but excludes acquisition related costs such as advisory, legal,
valuation and similar professional services. Transaction costs related to the acquisition of and incurred for
issuing equity instruments are deducted from equity; transaction costs incurred for issuing debt as part of
the business combination are deducted from the carrying amount of the debt and all other transaction costs
associated with the acquisition are expensed.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated; unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the cost cannot be recovered. The Company and
all of its subsidiaries use uniform accounting policies consistent with the Group’s policies.

Non-controlling interest is that part of the net results and of the equity of a subsidiary attributable to interests
which are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Company. Non-controlling interest forms a separate
component of the Group’s equity.

Purchases of subsidiaries from parties under common confrol. Purchases of subsidiaries from parties
under common control are accounted for using the prospective predecessor values method. Under this
method subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which they are transferred to the Group by the party
under common control. The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary transferred under common control are at
the predecessor entity’s carrying amounts.
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The predecessor entity is considered to be the highest reporting entity in which the subsidiary’s IFRS
financial information was consolidated. Related goodwill inherent in the predecessor entity's original
acquisitions is also recorded in these consolidated financial statements. Any difference between the
carrying amount of net assets, including the predecessor entity’s goodwill, and the consideration for which
the purchase is accounted for in these consolidated financial statements is recognized as an adjustment to
retained earnings within equity.

Purchases and sales of non-controlling interests. The Group applies the economic entity model to
account for transactions with owners of non-controlling interest in transactions that do not result in a loss
of control. Any difference between the purchase consideration and the carrying amount of non-controlling
interest acquired is recorded as a capital transaction directly in equity. The Group recognises the difference
between sales consideration and carrying amount of non-controlling interest sold as a capital transaction
in the statement of changes in equity.

Joint arrangements. Under IFRS 11 investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Company has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interests in the joInt ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Disposals of subsidiaries or joint ventures. When the Group ceases to have control or joint control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity, are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture is reduced but joint control is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
appropriate.

Financial instruments - key measurement terms. Depending on their classification financial instruments
are carried at fair value, cost or amortised cost as described below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is price
in an active market. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length
tfransactions or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure fair value of certain
financial instruments for which external market pricing information is not available. Fair value
measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements
at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii) level two measurements
are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices), and (iii) ievel three measurements are valuations not
based on solely observable market data (that is, the measurement requires significant unobservable
inputs). Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the end of the
reporting period. Refer to Note 36.
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Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to
acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition and includes fransaction costs. Measurement at cost is only
applicable to investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. Refer to Notes 36.

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of
a financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had
not taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions, such as those paid to agents, advisors
or brokers and dealers. Transaction costs do not include financing costs or internal administrative costs.

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognised at initial recognition less any
principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write-down for incurred
impairment losses. Accrued interest includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition
and of any premium or discount to maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest
income and accrued interest expense, including amortised discount or premium (including fees deferred at
origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of related items in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

The effective interast method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period, so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of Interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
(excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts
cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest repricing date, except for the premium or
discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the instrument, or other variables
that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortised over the whole expected life
of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Classification of financial assets. The Group’s financial assets represent (i) loans and receivables carried
at amortised cost and (i) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which are financial derivatives
designated as such upon initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
other than those that the Group intends to sell in the near term.

Derivative financial instruments, including interest rate swaps and commodity derivatives, are initially
recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. All derivative instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments are included in profit or loss
for the year. The Group does not apply hedge accounting. The fair value of derivative instruments is
disclosed in Note 30.

Classification of financial liabilities. Financial liabilities are categorized as (i) fair value through profit or
loss which aiso include financial derivatives and (i) other financial liabilities. Liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are carried at fair value with changes in value recognised in profit or loss as other finance
gains or losses in respect of interest rate swaps and as net gains from commodity derivatives when related
to energy derivatives. Other financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost.

Initial recognition of financial instruments. Derivatives are initially recorded at fair value. All other
financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value plus transaction costs. Fair value at initial recognition
is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on initial recognition is only recorded if there is a
difference between fair value and transaction price which can be evidenced by other observable current
market transactions in the same instrument or by a valuation technique whose inputs include only data from
observable markets.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which is
the date on which the Group commits to deliver a financial asset. All other purchases are recognised when
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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Derecognition of financial assets. The Group derecognises financial assets when (a) the assets are
redeemed or the rights to cash flows from the assets otherwise expire or (b) the Group has transferred the
rights to the cash flows from the financial assets or entered into a qualifying pass-through arrangement
while (i) also transferring substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the assets or (ii) neither
transferring nor retaining substantially all risks and rewards of ownership but not retaining control. Control
is retained if the counterparty does not have the practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated
third party without needing to impose additional restrictions on the sale.

Certain derivative instruments embedded in other financial instruments are treated as separate derivative
instruments when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract.

Property, plant and equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and provision for impairment, where required.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs of minor repairs and maintenance are expensed when incurred. Cost of replacing major parts or
components of property, plant and equipment items are capitalised and the replaced part is retired.

At the end of each reporting period management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment
of property, plant and equipment. If any such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable
amount, which is determined as the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
The carrying amount is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss for the year. An impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior years is reversed where appropriate
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's value in use or fair value less

costs to sell.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in profit or loss for the year within other operating income or expenses.

Depreciation. Land and assets under construction are not depreciated. Depreciation on other items
of property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives:

Useful lives in years

Buildings and halls 20 to 40
Distribution networks 20 to 50
Boilers, cogeneration units and other machinery 810 15
Vehicles and other equipment 3to08
Low-value non-current tanglble assets 2

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal
of the asset less the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age and in the condition
expected at the end of its useful life. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Opaerating leases. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership from the lessor to the Group, the total lease payments are charged to
profit or loss for the year on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The lease term is the non-cancellable
period for which the lessee has contracted to lease the asset together with any further terms for which the
lessee has the option to continue to lease the asset, with or without further payment, when at the inception
of the lease it is reasonably certain that the lessee will exercise the option.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, the lease payments recelvable are recognised as
rental income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

10
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Finance lease liabilities. Where the Group is a lessee in a lease which transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group, the assets leased are capitalised in property, plant
and equipment at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of future finance charges, are included in finance lease liabilities in the statement of
financial position. The interest cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period using the effective
interest method. The assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over their useful life or the
shorter lease term, if the Group is not reasonably certain that it will obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term.

Goodwill. Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill is allocated
to the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination. Such units or groups of units represent the lowest level
at which the Group monitors goodwill and are not larger than an operating segment.

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually and whenever there are indications that goodwill
may be impaired. Carrying value of goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount which is the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is monitored at operating segment level. Refer to Note 8.

Gains or losses on disposa! of an operation within a cash generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated include the carrying amount of goodwill associated with the disposed operation, generally
measured on the basis of the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-
generating unit which is retained.

Intangible assets. The Group'’s intangible assets other than goodwill have definite useful lives and primarily
include licences from service concession arrangements as described below and capitalised computer

software.

Service concession arrangements. The Group, as an operator, entered into public-to-private service
concession arrangements, if (a) the government entity or municipality in the arrangement controls or
regulates what services the Group must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and
at what price; and (b) the government entity or municipality controls through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise any slgnificant residual Interest in the Infrastructure at the end of the term of the
arrangement.

The Group recognises an intangible asset and corresponding liability, as applicable, from the service
concession arrangement to the extent that it receives a right (a licence) to charge users of the public service.
A right to charge users of the public service is not an unconditional right to receive cash because the
amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the service.

The Group recognises as an intangible asset (a) infrastructure that the Group constructs or acquires from
a third party for the purpose of the service arrangement; and (b) existing infrastructure to which the grantor
gives the Group access for the purpose of the service arrangement. The infrastructure that Group
constructs is initially recognised at cost measured with reference to fair value of the construction service
provided by the Group. The infrastructure acquired from a third party for the purposes of the service
arrangement is initially recognised at cost. The existing infrastructure to which the grantor gives the Group
access for the purposes of the service arrangement is initially recognised at cost. Where infrastructure was
acquired as part of business combination the cost is represented by its fair value at acquisition date. The
intangible assets are further carried at the amount initially recognised less any accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation is charged using the straight-line method over
the term of the arrangement.

Each rental payment to the grantor is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve
a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of future
finance charges, are included in other liabilities. The interest cost is charged to profit or loss over the
arrangement period using the effective interest method.

11
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Software. Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire
and bring them to use. Development costs that are directly associated with identifiable and unique software
controlled by the Group are recorded as intangible assets if an inflow of incremental economic benefits
exceeding costs is probable. Capitalised costs include staff costs of the software development team and
an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. All other costs associated with computer software, e.g. its
maintenance, are expensed when incurred.

Software is amortised using the straight-line method over its useful lives of 2 - 6 years.

If impaired, the carrying amount of intangible assets is written down to the higher of value in use and fair
value less costs to sell.

Impairment of non-financial assets. Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash
inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill) are reviewed
for possible reversal at each reporting date.

Income taxes. Income taxes have been provided for in the financial statements in accordance with
legistation enacted or substantively enacted in the respective jurisdictions by the end of the reporting period.
The income tax charge comprises current tax and deferred tax and is recognised in profit or loss for the
year, except if it is recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity because it relates to
transactions that are also recognised, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax is the amount expected to be paid to, or recovered from, the taxation authorities in respect of
taxable profits or losses for the current and prior periods. Taxable profits or losses are based on estimates
if financial statements are authorised prior to filing relevant tax returns. Taxes other than on income are
recorded within operating expenses.

Deferred income tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method for tax loss carry forwards and
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the initial recognition exemption, deferred taxes are not
recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of an asset or a liability in a transaction other than
a business combination if the transaction, when initially recorded, affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are not recorded for temporary differences on initial recognition of goodwill,
and subsequently for goodwill which is not deductible for tax purposes. Deferred tax balances are measured
at tax rates enacted or substantively enacted in the respective jurisdictions at the end of the reporting
period, which are expected to apply to the period when the temporary differences will reverse or the tax
loss carry forwards will be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted only within the individual
companies of the Group. Deferred tax assets for deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry
forwards are recorded only to the extent that it is probable future that the temporary differences will be
reversed in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the deductions can be
utilised.

The Group controls the reversal of temporary differences relating to taxes chargeable on dividends from
subsidiaries or on gains upon their disposal. The Group does not recognise deferred tax liabilities on such
temporary differences except to the extent that management expects the temporary differences to reverse
in the foreseeable future. Dividend income is currently not subject to income tax in the Slovak Republic for
corporate tax payable.

Since 1 September 2012, Slovak companies engaged in business in regulated industries, which generally
include licensed distribution of heat, electricity and/or supply of electricity and gas are obliged to pay the
special levy. The levy is payable, if the revenues from regulated activities achieve at least 50% of the total
revenues of the individual entities of the Group for the respective accounting period. The Group's obligation
to pay the levy arises when the profit before tax of the respective entity for the accounting period is at least
EUR 3 million. The levy rate in 2016 was 4.356% per annum in a full year of operation.
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The levy was calculated as the multiple of the given rate and the excess of accounting profit before tax
determined under Slovak generally accepted accounting principles over EUR 3 miillion. From 2017 new
methodology for calculating of the special levy applies, where the basis for the special levy is calculated as
profit before tax * (revenues from regulated activities/total revenues). The rate of special levy used for the
calculation for 2017 and 2018 is 8.712% p.a., then for the years 2019 - 2020 the rate 6.54% p.a. applies
and 4.356% will apply from 2021. The levy is a deductible expense for the purposes of applying the standard
corporate income tax rate. The Group has accounted for the levy within the other operating expenses.

Uncertain tax positions. The Group's unceriain tax positions are reassessed by management at the end
of each reporting period. Liabilities are recorded for income tax positions that are determined by
management as more likely than not to result in additional taxes being levied if the positions were to be
challenged by the tax authorities. The assessment is based on the interpretation of tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any known court or other rulings
on such issues. Liabilities for penalties, interest and taxes other than on income are recognised based on
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations at the end of the reporting
period.

Inventories. Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventory is
determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business of which settlement is expected within 12 months. Other receivables with settlement
expected after 12 months are presented as non-current and include cash collaterals required by the
regulators or other market participants and prepaid insurance premiums.

Impairment of financial assels carried at amortised cost. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss when incurred as a result of one or more events (“loss events”) that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset and which have an impact on the amount or timing of the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence exists that impairment was incurred for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics, and collectively assesses them for impairment. The primary factors that the Group
considers in determining whether a financial asset is impaired are its overdue status and realisability of
related collateral or other credit enhancements, if any. The following other principal criteria are also used
to determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has occurred:

- any portion or instalment is overdue, generally more than 30 days, and the late payment cannot be
attributed to a delay caused by the settlement systems;

- the counterparty experiences a significant financial difficulty as evidenced by its financial
information that the Group obtains;

- the counterparty considers bankruptcy or a financial reorganisation,

- there is an adverse change in the payment status of the counterparty as a result of changes in the
national or local economic conditions that impact the counterparty; or

- the value of collateral, if any, significantly decreases as a result of deteriorating market conditions.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due accerding to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment, are estimated
on the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets and the experience of management in respect of
the extent to which amounts will become overdue as a result of past loss events and the success of recovery
of overdue amounts. Past experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the
effects of current conditions that did not affect past periods, and to remove the effects of past conditions
that do not exist currently.
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If the terms of an impaired financial asset held at amortised cost are renegotiated or otherwise modified
because of financial difficulties of the counterparty, impairment is measured using the original effective
interest rate before the modification of terms. The renegctiated asset is then derecognized and a new asset
is recognized at its fair value only if the risks and rewards of the asset substantially changed. This is
normally evidenced by a substantial difference between the present values of the original cash flows and
the new expected cash flows.

Impairment losses are always recognised through an allowance account to write down the asset's carrying
amount to the present value of expected cash flows (which exclude future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset. The calculation of the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result
from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probabie.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account through profit or loss for the year.

Uncollectible assets are written off against the related impairment loss provision after all the necessary
procedures to recover the asset have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to impairment loss account within the
profit or loss for the year.

Prepayments. Prepayments are carried at cost less provision for impairment. A prepayment is classified
as non-current when the goods or services relating to the prepayment are expected to be obtained after
one year, or when the prepayment relates to an asset which will itself be classified as non-current upon
initial recognition. Prepayments to acquire assets are transferred to the carrying amount of the asset once
the Group has obtained control of the asset and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group. Other prepayments are written off to profit or loss when the goods
or services relating to the prepayments are received. If there is an indication that the assets, goods or
services relating to a prepayment will not be received, the carrying value of the prepayment is written down
accordingly and a corresponding impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Construction contracts. A construction contract is defined by IAS 11, ‘Construction contracts’, as a
contract specifically negotiated for the construction of an asset. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to the stage of completion. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period. When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the
expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included in contract revenue to the extent that may have been agreed
with the customer and are capable of being reliably measured.

The Group uses the ‘percentage-of-completion’ method to determine the appropriate amount to recognise
in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs incurred in
the year in connection with future activity on a contract are excluded from contract costs in determining the
stage of completion.

On the statement of financial position, the Group reports the net contract position for each contract as either
an asset within trade and other receivables or a liability within trade and other payables. A contract
represents an asset where costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed progress
billings; a contract represents a liability where the opposite is the case.
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Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, Cash and cash equivalents are items which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Restricted balances are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents and presented separately on the statement of financial position. Balances
restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period are classified as other non-current assets. Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Share capital. Ordinary shares with discretionary dividends are classified as equity. incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds. Any excess of the fair value of consideration received over the par value of shares issued is
recorded as share premium in equity.

Dividends. Dividends are recorded as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which they are
declared and approved. Any dividends declared after the reporting period and before the financial
statements are authorised for issue are disclosed in the subsequent events note.

Value added tax. Output value added tax related to sales is payable to tax authorities on the earlier of (a)
collection of receivables from customers or (b) delivery of goods or services to customers. Input VAT is
generally recoverable against output VAT upon receipt of the VAT invoice. The tax authorities permit the
settlement of VAT on a net basis when they relate to the same taxable entity. In the context of the Group's
current structure, VAT assets of different Group companies may not be offset against VAT liabilities of other
Group companies. Where provision has been made for impairment of receivables, impairment loss is
recorded for the gross amount of the debtor, including VAT.

Borrowings. Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Capitallsation of borrowing costs. General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of assets that are not carried at fair value and that necessarily take
a substantial time to get ready for intended use or sale (qualifying assets) are capitalised as part of the
costs of those assets, if the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009.

The commencement date for capitalisation is when (a) the Group incurs expenditures for the qualifying
asset; (b) it incurs borrowing costs; and (c) it undertakes activities that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs continues up to the date when the assets are substantially ready for their
use or sale.

The Group capitalises borrowing costs that could have been avoided if it had not made capital expenditure
on qualifying assets. Borrowing costs capitalised are calculated at the Group’s average funding cost (the
weighted average interest cost is applied to the expenditures on the qualifying assets), except to the extent
that funds are borrowed specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. Where this occurs,
actual borrowing costs incurred less any investment income on the temporary investment of those
borrowings are capitalised.

Government grants. Grants from the government, except for allotted emission allowances, are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to other operating
income in the profit or loss on a straight line basls over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss for the year as other
operating income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.
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Trade and other payables. Trade and other payables are accrued when the counterparty performs its
obligations under the contract and are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.

Provisions for liabilities and charges. Provisions for liabilities and charges are non-financial liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount. They are accrued when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to
setile the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as an interest expense.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the probability that an outflow will be required
in seftlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying the economic bensfits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognised, but are disclosed if an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Foreign currency translation. The functional currency of each of the Group’s consolidated entities is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The Group's presentation
currency is the national currency of the Slovak Republic, Euro (“EUR") which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances. Monetary assets and liabilities are translated into each entity's functional
currency at the official exchange rate of the European Central Bank ("ECB") at the respective end of the
reporting period. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of the transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities into each entity’s functional currency at year-end
official exchange rates of the ECB are recognised in profit or loss as other finance gains or losses when
related to finance activities such as bank borrowings, otherwise as other operating income or expense
Translation at year-end rates does not apply to non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency, including equity investments, are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Effects of exchange
rate changes on non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are recorded as part of
the fair value gain or loss.

Group companies. Loans between Group entifies and related foreign exchange gains or losses are eliminated
upon consolidation. However, where the loan is between Group entities that have different functional currencies,
the foreign exchange gain or loss cannot be eliminated in full and is recognized in the consolidated profit or loss,
unless the loan is not expected to be settled in the foreseeable future and thus forms part of the net investment
in foreign operation. In such a case, the foreign exchange gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income.

The results and financial position of each Group entity (the functional currency of none of which is a currency of
a hyperinflationary economy) are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

{i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position are translated at the closing rate at the end of
the respective reporting period;

(i) income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the fransaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the fransactions),

(iil) components of equity are translated at the historlc rate; and

(iv) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When control over a foreign operation is lost, the exchange differences recognised previously in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss for the year as part of the gain or loss on disposal.
On partial disposal of a subsidiary without loss of control, the related portion of accumulated currency
translation differences is reclassified to non-controlling interest within equity.
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Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

At 31 December 2017, the principal rate of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
EUR 1 = CZK 25,535, EUR 1 =RSD 119.194, EUR 1 = HUF 310.33, EUR 1 =PLN 4.177 .

The principal average rate of exchange used for translating income and expenses was
EUR 1 = CZK 26.326, EUR 1 = RSD 121.471, EUR 1 = HUF 308.193, EUR 1 = PLN 4.257.

Revenue recognition. Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax, estimated returns, rebates and discounts.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria are met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies pertaining to the sale have been resolved.

Revenue of the Group mainly includes revenue from supply and distribution of heat, gas, electricity and
other utilities (“energy”).

Revenue from energy supply and distribution is recognised when the energy is delivered to the
customer. Delivery takes place when the risks and benefits associated with ownership are transferred to
the buyer. Consumption of large customers is metered and billed on a monthly basis. The consumption of
the small businesses and households is generally metered on an annual basis but billed monthly on the
basis of agreed biiling profile. Energy supplied but not yet measured is estimated on the historical
consumption statistics and contracted selling prices.

Contracts on the receipt or delivery of non-financial items, in particular gas and electricity, entered into
under the Group's expected purchase, sale or usage requirements (own-use contracts) are not accounted
for as derivative financial instruments, but rather as executory contracts.

Contracts on the receipt or delivery of commodities which do not meet the above definition of own-use
contracts are accounted for as derivative financial instruments.

Revenue from the service concession arrangements. The Group recognises and measures revenue
from the service concession arrangements in accordance with IAS 11 "Construction contracts” (construction
or upgrade services) and IAS 18 “Revenue” (operation services) for the services it performs under the
arrangements. If the Group performs more than one service under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

Revenue from sale of services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services are rendered,
by reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service
provided as a proportion of the total services to be provided.

Other revenue represents income from other business operations not direcily attributable to the principal
activities of the Group.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.

Emission Allowances. In 2005, the EU-wide greenhouse gas emission allowances trading scheme came
into effect, together with the Act on Emission Allowances Trading passed by the Slovak Parliament in order
to implement the related EU Directive in the Slovak Republic. Under this legislation, the Group is allotted a
certain number of emission allowances and is required to deliver these allowances to the Slovak
Environmental Office to offset actual greenhouse gas emissions.
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The Group has opted to account for the allotted emission allowances using the net liability method, and
recognises a liability for actual emissions only when the Group has been initially allotted insufficient
emission allowances to cover its actual emissions. The provision is measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, which represents
the market price of the number of allowances required to cover emissions made up to the end of reporting
period.

Emission allowances purchased by the Group are recognized on the trade date. Purchased emission
allowances are recognized as intangible assets and measured at acquisition costs. The intangible asset
representing the emissions allowances is carried at acquisition costs subject to impairment. If impaired, the
carrying amount of emission allowances recognized as intangible assets is written down to their fair value
less costs to sell. Unused emission allowances, which cannot be transferred to subsequent trading period,
are written off.

Employee benefits. Wages, salaries, contributions to the Slovak Republic and other countries state
pension and social insurance funds, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to make pension or similar benefit payments beyond the
payments to the statutory defined contribution schemes and legally defined retirement payments.

Offsetting financial instruments. Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. Such a right of offset (i) must not be contingent on a future event and (ii) must be
legally enforceable in all of the following circumstances: {(a) in the normal course of business; {b) in the
event of default; {¢) in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy.

3 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and
judgements are continually evaluated and are based on management's experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Management also makes certain judgements, apart from those involving estimations, in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements and estimates that can cause a significant adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

Impairment of goodwill. The management tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. The impairment
test for goodwill is based on certain assumptions pertaining to the future, which are regularly adjusted. The
Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units
have been determined based on enterprise value calculations or fair value of underlying property as
described in Note 8.

Provisional fair values in accounting for the GGE Polska Gaz sp. z 0.0. group business combination.
The Group has not finalised the initial accounting for the acquisition of GGE Polska Gaz sp. z 0.0. (Duon
group) as of the date of preparaticn of these consolidated financial statements. The Group used the option
under IFRS to use provisional fair values to value assets and liabilities acquired. The management expects
that the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired and consequently of goodwill recognised will change
upon the final determination during 2018 and comparatives will be retroactively adjusted in the Group’s
2018 financial statements, if necessary.

impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangibfe assets. The management has assessed
that there is no significant impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets on the basis
of an evaluation of the current use and expected future revenues and the regulatory environment. The
management has assumed that the level of both production and sales will be maintained over the useful
lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. Therefore, adjustments for impairment
may be required in the future if actual sales are significantly reduced.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment. The estimation of the useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment is a matter of judgement based on the experience with similar assets. The future
economic benefits embodied in the assets are consumed principally through use.
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However, other factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence and wear and tear, often result in
the diminution of the economic benefits embodied in the assets. Management assesses the remaining
useful lives in accordance with the current technical conditions of the assets and estimated period during
which the assets are expected to earn benefits for the Group. The following primary factors are considered:
(a) expected usage of the assets; (b) expected physical wear and tear, which depends on operational
factors and maintenance programme; and (c) technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes
in market conditions.

Non-current tangible assets are depreciated based on the estimated useful life. Any differences between
this depreciation period and their actual useful life may have a significant impact on these consolidated
financial statements.

Were the estimated useful lives to differ by 10% from management's estimates, the impact on depreciation
charge for the period between 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 would be to increase it by EUR 721
thousand (2016: EUR 832 thousand) or decrease it by EUR 590 thousand (2016: EUR 680 thousand).

Contracts on the receipt or delivery of non-financial items. The Group enters into contracts with
commodities, in particular gas and electricity. The management uses judgement based on the purpose of
the contract to classify the contracts in those entered into under the Group's expected purchase, sale or
usage requirements (own-use contracts), which are not accounted for as derivative financial instruments,
but rather as executory contracts, and other contracts not meeting own-use classification.

Electricity commodity derivatives. Management evaluated contracts for provision of balancing services
during 2016 and 2017. Management identified embedded commodity derivatives in the contracts and
decided that the bifurcation criteria were met, and thus separated the option based derivatives from the
host contracts.

Under the contracts, the customers pay premium fees over the duration of the contracts that should cover
the exposure from the embedded derivatives. As a result of the balancing services provided under these
contracts during the period, the Group recognised a net gain from these commodity derivatives of
EUR 1,590 thousand (2016: EUR 2,210 thousand).

Market price for managing the electricity consumption deviation is dependent on multiple factors and the
behaviour of the overall market in Slovakia and as such is out of the Group’s control. Positive and negative
deviations of individual market participants and the overall market balance at a specific point of time in the
future is not predictable.

Estimated fair value of the derivatives opan from balancing services agreements as of 31 December 2017
was determined by the management using the discounted cash flow model and Monte-Carlo model at EUR
1,015 thousand (2016: EUR 1,409 thousand).

The Group has revalued other electricity trading contracts which do not meet the criteria for own-use
exemption and their fair value as of 31 December 2017 amounted to net loss of EUR 1,208 thousand
(positive fair value of EUR 11.2 million, negative fair value of EUR 12.5 million).

Gas commodity derivative. During the period, the Group entered into a balancing services agreement
and a series of contracts related thereto, which include a combination of embedded forward sales of gas
with notional amount of EUR 14.2 million (2016: EUR 14.6 million) and forward purchases of gas with
notional amount of EUR 15.2 million (2016: EUR 131 thousand), a written gas volume flexibility option and
a written option to provide gas to balance daily deviations, all with the maturity dates in 2018. The
management estimated the fair value of the individual contracts and embedded derivatives requiring
separation from the host contract as of 31 December 2017 using the valuation techniques, such as
discounted cash flow model and Monte-Carlo model. The valuation estimate resulted in an unrealised gain
of EUR 1,208 thousand (2016: EUR 131 thousand) and unrealised loss of EUR 1,167 thousand (2016:
EUR 4,221 thousand) booked as of 31 December 2017. The fair value revaluation as of 31 December 2016
was realised in profit or loss of the year 2017.

The most significant input in the fair value estimate as of 31 December 2017 is the gas market price. Were
the gas market prices decrease or increase by 10% from management estimates, the impact on net loss
from commodity derivatives for the year 2017 would be insignificant (period between 1 January 2016 and
31 December 2016: the impact on net gain from commodity derivatives would be to increase or decrease
it by EUR 1,585 thousand).
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4 Adoption of New or Revised Standards and Interpretations

The foliowing amended standards became effective for the Group from 1 January 2017, but did not have
any material impact on the Group:

5

Disclosure Initiative — Amendments to IAS 7 (issued on 29 January 2016 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017). The new disclosures are included in Note 19.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses — Amendment to IAS 12 (issued on 19
January 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

Amendments to IFRS 12 included in Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle (issued on 8
December 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

New Accounting Pronouncements

Certain new standards, interpretations and amendments have been issued that are mandatory for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, and which the entity has not early adopted:

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement (issued in July 2014 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

Key features of the new standard are:

Financial assets are required to be classified into three measurement categories: those to be
measured subsequently at amortised cost, those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss (FVTPL).

Classification for debt instruments is driven by the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and whether the contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI). If a debt instrument is held to collect, it may be carried at amortised cost If it alsc meets the
SPPI requirement. Debt instruments that meet the SPPI requirement that are held in a portfolio
where an entity both holds to collect assets’ cash flows and sells assets may be classified as FVOCI.
Financial assets that do not contain cash flows that are SPP| must be measured at FVTPL (for
example, derivatives). Embedded derivatives are no longer separated from financial assets but will
be included in assessing the SPPI condition.

Investments in equity instruments are always measured at fair value. However, management can
make an irrevocable election to present changes in fair value In other comprehensive income,
provided the instrument is not held for trading. If the equity instrument is held for trading, changes
in fair value are presented in profit or loss.

Most of the requirements in IAS 39 for classification and measurement of financial liabilities were
carried forward unchanged to IFRS 9. The key change is that an entity will be required to present
the effects of changes in own credit risk of financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss in other comprehensive income.

IFRS 9 introduces a new model for the recognition of impairment losses — the expected credit losses
(ECL) model. There is a ‘three stage’ approach which is based on the change in credit quality of
financial assets since initial recognition. In practice, the new rules mean that entities will have to
record an immediate loss equal to the 12-month ECL on initial recognition of financial assets that
are not credit impaired (or lifetime ECL for trade receivables). Where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, impairment is measured using lifetime ECL rather than 12-month ECL. The
model includes operational simplifications for lease and trade receivables.

Hedge accounting requirements were amended to align accounting more closely with risk
management. The standard provides entities with an accounting policy choice between applying the
hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 and continuing to apply IAS 39 to all hedges because the
standard currently does not address accounting for macro hedging.
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The Group has started to assess the impact of the new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The Group expects impact on the provisions for doubtful receivables, however has not yet
developed a reasonable estimate of the expected increase in provisions especially because the Group
has not yet assessed the forward looking information, including macro-economic forecasts and
probabilities assigned to alternative macro-economic outlooks, to determine the effects of adopting the
standard that will be recognised against opening balance of retained earnings as of 1 January 2018.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and changes in presentation.
These are expected to change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial
instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the new standard.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 28 May 2014, amended on 12 April
2016 and effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018). The new standard
introduces the core principle that revenue must be recognised when the goods or services are
transferred to the customer, at the transaction price. Any bundled goods or services that are distinct
must be separately recognised, and any discounts or rebates on the contract price must generally be
allocated to the separate elements. When the consideration varies for any reason, minimum amounts
must be recognised if they are not at significant risk of reversal. Costs incurred to secure contracts with
customers have to be capitalised and amortised over the period when the benefits of the contract are

consumed.

In accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15 the Group has elected simplified transition
method with the effect of transition to be recognised as at 1 January 2018 in the consolidated financial
statements for the year-ending 31 December 2018 which will be the first year when the Group will apply
IFRS 15.

The Group plans to apply the practical expedient available for simplified transition method. The Group
applies IFRS 15 retrospectively only to contracts that are not completed at the date of initial application
(1 January 2018).

The adoption of IFRS 15 will result in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to be recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group has started to assess the impact of the new standard
on the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Group is analyzing its revenue streams for the
year ended 31 December 2017, individual contracts’ terms and the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at that date, in view of simplified transition method application. Due to the complexity of the
analysis, the management of the Group has not yet developed a reasonable estimate of the impact on
its consolidated financial statements from the adoption of the new standard on 1 January 2018.

IFRS 16, Leases (issued in January 2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019). The new standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases result in the lessee obtaining the right to use an asset
at the start of the lease and, if lease payments are made over time, also obtaining financing. Accordingly,
IERS 16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases as is required
by IAS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Lessees will be required to
recognise: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value; and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease
liabilities in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. IFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on its financial statements.
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The following standards, interpretations and amendments are not expected to have any material impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over Incorne Tax Treatments™ (issued on 7 June 2017 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture -
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28* {(issued on 11 September 2014 and effective for annual
periods beginning on or after a date to be determined by the IASB).

Amendments to IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (issued on 12 April 2016
and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018)

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based Payment* (issued on 20 June 2016 and effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to IFRS
4 (issued on 12 September 2016 and effective, depending on the approach, for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 for entities that choose to apply temporary exemption
option, or when the entity first applies IFRS 9 for entities that choose to apply the overlay
approach).

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle* (issued on 8 December 2016 and effective
for annual periods beginning on after 1 January 2018 for amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28).

IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration™ (issued on 8 December
2016 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

Transfers of Investment Property - Amendments to IAS 40* (issued on 8 December 2016 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts™ (issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021).

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation — Amendments to IFRS 9* (issued on 12
October 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to IAS 28* (issued on 12
October 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

Annual Improvements o IFRSs 2015-2017 cycle — Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12
and IAS 23* (issued on 12 December 2017 and effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019).

* These new standards, amendments and interpretations have not besn endorsed by the European union yet.
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6 Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Parties are generally considered to be related If the parties are under commeon control or if one party has
the ability to control the other party or can exercise significant influence or have joint control over the other
party in making financial and operational decisions. In considering each possible related party relationship,
attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, not merely the legal form.

At 31 December 2017, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

In thousands of EUR

Immediate Other

company shareholders

Entities

under
parent significant common management
control

Key

persconnel

Ultimate

Joint controlling

venture

party

Financial investments
Trade and other receivables
Current financial investments
- Loans

(contractual interest rate: 5%)
Impairment provision for current
financial investments at 31
December
Borrowings
- Loans

(effective interest rate: 10%)

- Loans (contractual interest rate:

7%)
Trade and other payables

(54,041)

(29 728)

671

(44)

At 31 December 20186, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

In thousands of EUR

Immediate Other
parent signlificant
company shareholders

Entities
under
common
control

Key
management
personnel

Ultimate

Joint controlling

venture

party

Financial investments
Trade and other receivables
Current financial investments
- Loans

(contractual interest rate: 5%)
Impairment provision for current
financial investments at 31
December
Borrowings
- Loans

(effective interest rate: 10%)
Trade and other payables

(55,084) -

152

669

(53)

The loans provided by the immediate parent company have a maximum maturity date at 21 September
2030. Refer to Note 19. The loan from entity under comrmon control has been acquired during acquisition
of Duon Group, refer to Note 33, and refinanced with a long term loan from the immediate parent company

in 2018, refer to Note 38.

23



GGE a. s.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements — 31 December 2017

The income and expense items with related parties for the period between 1 January 2017 and

31 December 2017 were as follows:

Entities
Imme-diate Other signlifi- under Key mana- Ultimate
parent cant share- common gement Joint  control-
In thousands of EUR company holders control person-nel venture ling party
Revenue from sale of electricity - - - 606 - -
Revenue from sale of gas - - - - 545 -
Net gains or losses from
deri\?atives - . ) (417) . )
Energy consumption = - - (824) (161} -
Consumables and services - - - (5671) - -
Other
Interest income - - < - 26 -
Interest expense (5,240) - - - =

The income and expense items with related parties for
31 December 2016 were as follows:

the period between 1 January 2016 and

Entitles

Imme-diate Other signifi- under Key mana- Ultimate

parent cantshare- common gement Joint  control-

In thousands of EUR company holders  control person-nel venture ling party
Revenus from sale of gas = - - 667 -
Energy consumption = - - - (257) =
Interest income - - . - 65 -
Interest expense (5.262) - - - - .

Key management compensation. Key management includes executive directors and financial directors
of individual entities within the Group. Key management compensation table is presented below:

1 January 2016

1 January 2017 to to 31 December

31 December 2017 2016

Accrued Accrued
in thousands of EUR Expense liability Expense liabillity
Short-term benefits:
- Salaries 1,468 - 1,289 -
- Short-term bonuses 829 - 1,238 -
- Benefits in-kind 57 - 42 -
Total 2,353 - 2,569 -

Short-term bonuses fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which management

rendered the related services.
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7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

Land, Plant,
buildings and machinery& Construction
In thousands of EUR Note structures equipment in progress Total
Cost at 1 January 2017 51,840 50,215 825 102,880
Accumulated depreciation (2,611) (6,635) - (9,246)
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 49,229 43,580 825 93,634
Acquisition through the business a3 1,248 42,878 3,410 47,536
combinations
Additions - - 4,526 4,526
Transfers 919 3,688 (4,607) E
Disposals (545) (98) (5) (648)
Depreciation charge (1,932) (4,558) - {6,490)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 48,919 85,490 4,149 138,558
Cost at 31 December 2017 53,403 96,676 4,149 154,228
Accumulated depreciation (4,484) (11,186) - (15,670)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 48,919 85,490 4,149 138,558
In 2016:
Land, Plant,
buildings and  machinery & Construction
iIn thousands of EUR Note structures equipment in progress Total
Cost at 1 January 2016 (restated) 51,149 46,531 684 08,364
Accumulated depreciation {525) (1,514) - (2,039)
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016
(restated) 50,624 45,017 684 96,325
Acquisition through the business
combinations 33 335 "7 - 1,052
Additions - - 3,746 3,746
Transfers 356 3,249 (3,605) -
Disposals (1) 4) - 5)
Depreciation charge (2,085) (5,399) - (7.484)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 49,229 43,580 825 93,634
Cost at 31 December 2016 51,840 50,215 825 102,880
Accumulated depreciation (2,611) (6,635) - (9,246)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 49,229 43,580 825 93,634
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Included in plant, machinery and equipment are assets held under finance leases with a carrying value of
EUR 46 thousand.

At 31 December 2017 and at 31 December 2016, substantially all property, plant and equipment have been
pledged to third parties as collateral for borrowings. Refer to Note 19.

8 Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill was EUR 38,707 thousand as at 31 December 2017 (2016: EUR 38,031
thousand). Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and the calculation is based on the fair value of
net assets acquired in line with the Group accounting policy and on the provisional fair value of net assets
acquired in line with the Group accounting policy for acquisition in 2017. Refer to Note 33.

Goodwill Impairment Test

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually. The impairment test for goodwill is based on
certain assumptions pertaining to the future, which are regularly adjusted.

The Group has reassessed its impairment test of cash-generating units that are represented by business
operations in individual entities. As a result of its reassessment, the Group has not recognized any

impairment.

For the purposes of annual goodwill impairment test, the fair values were determined based on 30-year
discounted cash flow models and based on enterprise value calculations (Level 3 in fair value hierarchy)
using the assumed EBITDA multiples. The multiples considered by management were based on the
available market reports for the particular industry sectors. The EBITDA considered by management reflect
the actual performance of each segment {production and distribution, supply).

If the EBITDA multiples or the actual EBITDA had been 5% lower than management's estimates, the
impairment test would show no surplus over the carrying amount of non-current assets including goodwill.
If the EBITDA multiples or the actual EBITDA had been 25% lower than management’s estimates, the
Group would need to reduce the carrying value of goodwill for the tested segmentis to zero. The resulting
impairment charge to property, plant and equipment would be immaterial.

Had any impairment been recognised, the Group would not be able to reverse any impairment losses that
arose on goodwill in subsequent periods even if circumstances improve.

9 Other Intangible Assets

Service con- Acquired :
cession software Emisslon

In thousands of EUR Note agreements _ licences rights Other Total
Cost at 1 January 2017 73,195 74 1,229 50 74,548
Accumulated amortisation (10,250) - (350) (6) (10606)
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 62,945 74 879 44 63,942
Acquisition through business combinations 33 - - - 8,260 8,260
Additions 2,199 134 879 - 3,212
Amortisation charge (9,973) - (879) - (10,852)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 55,171 208 879 8,304 64,562
Cost at 31 December 2017 75,394 208 2,108 8,310 86,020
Accumulated amortisation (20,223) - (1,229) (6) (21,458)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 55171 208 879 8,304 64,562
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In 2016:
Service con- Acquired
cession software Emission

In thousands of EUR Note agreements licences rights Other Total
Cost at 1 January 2016 (restated) 69,603 98 350 321 70,462
Accumulated amortisation (2,223) 27 - (299) (2,549)
Carrying amount at 1 January 2016 (restated) 67,470 7 350 22 67,913
Acquisition through business combinations 33 2,421 - - 28 2,449
Additions 3,304 3 879 0 4,186
Amortisation charge {10,250) - (350) (6) (10,606)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 62,945 74 879 44 63,942
Cost at 31 December 2016 73,195 74 1,229 50 74,548
Accumulated amortisation {10 250) - (350} (6) (10 6086)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 62,945 74 8§79 44, 63,942

At 31 December 2017 intangible assets carried at EUR 208 thousand (2016: EUR 513 thousand) have
been pledged to third parties as collateral with respect to borrowings and other long term liabilities towards
municipalities. Refer to Notes 19 and 21.

Service concession agreements. The Group has entered into service concession arrangements of a similar
nature with several municipalities in Slovakia. The arrangements will mature in the years 2021 - 2036 and
involve the Group as an operator (1) constructing or upgrading the infrastructure used to provide the public
service of production and distribution of energy and (2) operating and maintaining that infrastructure for a
specified period of time under non-cancellable agreements or without time limitation, subject to termination
after notice period of ten years.

The arrangements convey to the Group the right to use the rented and newly built infrastructure during the
term of the arrangement and the Group is obliged to deliver the infrastructure built by the Group to the
grantors at the end of the concession period for a pre-determined residual value.

The Regulatory Office for Network Industries (Urad pre reguléciu siefovych odvetvi, “URSQ”) regulates
activities of the energy sector in Slovakia, in which the Group operates. The principal regulated activities
of the Group include production, distribution and supply of electricity, gas, heat'and water.

Annually, the URSO approves cap prices for each entity within the Group, including those entities operating
under the service concession arrangements, that performs one or more of the above activities, based on
the proposed prices submitied by the entities to the regulator. The prices are determined based on the
eligible costs, including tax depreciation derived from regulated assets base as determined by URSO and
a reasonable profit margin.
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10 Investments in Joint Venture
The carrying amount of the Group's investment in joint venture is zero for the periods presented.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016 the Group holds 50% interest in the KGJ Invest a.s. The entity is a
separate legal entity with principal business activities in heating operations and a place of business in
Slovakia. The entity was part of the transaction in business combination (refer to Note 33). Summarised
financial information of the joint venture for the whole financial year of the entity as at 31 December is as
follows:

in thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Current assets 1,722 1,752
Non-current assets 2,298 2,593
Current liabilities (3,345) (2,004)
Non-current liabilities (1,511) (2,941)
Net liabilities of the joint venture as at 31 December (836) {600)
Revenue 1,201 1,322
Profit / (loss) from business operations (57) 200
Total comprehensive profit / (loss) {235) 11

11 Financial Investments

In thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Other financial investments 32 21
Non-current financial investments 32 21
Loans issued 995 986
Other financial investments 2 6

Less: Provision for impairment of loans issued - -

Current financial investments 997 9802

Total financial investments 1,029 1,013
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The movements in gross amount of financial investments are as follows:

Total non-
Other current Loans Other

financlal financlal issued - financial Total financial
In thousands of EUR Note investments Investments current investments investments
Gross amount at
1 January 2017 21 21 936 6 1,013
Interest Income accrued 11 11 9 - 20
Disposals - - . (4) 4)
Gross amount at
31 December 2017 32 32 995 2 1,029
In 2016:

Total non-
Other current Loans Other

financial financial issued - financial Total financial
In thousands of EUR Note Invesitments Iinvestments current investments investments
Gross amount at
1 January 2016 {restated) 51 51 1,017 4 1,072
Loans issued - - 127 2 129
Disposals {30) (30) (158) - {188)
Gross amount at 2 21 986 6 1,013

31 December 2016
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Analysis by credit quality of loans issued outstanding at 31 December is as follows:

In thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Neither past due nor impaired

- other loans not settled after the end of the period 324 317
Total neither past due nor impaired 324 317

Loans individually determined to be impaired (gross)

- due loan issued to the joint venture (Note 10) 871 669
Total individually impaired loans {gross) 671 669
Less impalrment provision 0 -
Total loans Issued 995 986

The Group applied the impairment methodology prescribed by IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement”, and created provisions for impairment losses that were incurred and specifically
identified on individual loans, by the end of the reporting period, mainly within the energy and gas supply
segment. The Group's policy is to classify each loan as ‘individually impaired’ when specific objective
evidence of impairment of the loan is identified.

The Group applied the methodology prescribed by 1AS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”,
and released an impairment provision of EUR 42 thousand (2016: created provision of EUR 42 thousand)
for share of loss of joint venture which was charged against the loan issued to the joint venture (refer to
Note 10). The loan is not past due and is not collateralised.

12 Restricted cash

Restricted cash of EUR 322 thousand (2016: EUR 330 thousand) is held in banks as collateral for the bank
guarantees issued by these banks with maturity in 2017. As of 31 December 2016, restricted cash of EUR
6,000 thousand was held in a bank as an escrow account for the business combination as an unpaid portion
of the purchase price. The balance has been paid in 2017.

The amount of restricted cash as of 31 December 2017 is neither past due, nor impaired. The carrying
amount of restricted cash approximates its fair value.

13 Inventories

in thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Gas 2,477 3,121
Coal 180 348
Raw materials 141 82
Other inventory 373 47
Total Inventories 3,171 3,598

At 31 December 2017 and at 31 December 2016, substantially all inventories have been pledged to third
parties as collateral for borrowings. Refer to Note 19,
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14 Trade and Other Receivables

In thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Trade receivables 45,940 39,894
Receivables from construction contracts 16 521 1,167
Accrued revenues 3,651 7,901
Cash collaterals 2,119 2,529
Falr value of commodity derivatives 36 13,425 1,540
Other financial receivables 731 641
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables (818) (744)
Less provision for impaiment of other financial receivables (222) (283)
Total financial assets within trade and other receivables 65,347 52,645
Other tax receivables 605 1,611
Prepayments 649 490
Deferred expenses 372 471
Other non-financial receivables 7 29
Total trade and other receivables 66,980 55,246
Non-current portion: 707 1,040

- Cash collaterals 447 929

- Deferred expenses 260 111
Current portion: 66,273 54,206

Trade and other receivables net of impairment loss provisions are denominated in currencies as foliows:

in thousands of EUR 2017 2016
-EUR 50,768 46,000
- Polish Zloty 8,278 4,923
- Czech Koruna 6,545 829
- Serbian Dinar 1,241 2,072
- Other 148 1,422
Total trade and other receivables 66,980 55,248

At 31 December 2017 and at 31 December 20186, substantially alt trade and other receivables have been

pledged to third partles as collateral with respect to borrowings. Refer to Note 19.
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Movements in the impairment provision for trade and other receivables are as follows:

2017
Trade Other financial
In thousands of EUR Note receivables recelvables
Provision for impairment at 1 January 744 283
Provision for impairment during the period 26 74 (61)
Provision for Impalirment at 31 December 818 222
2016
Trade Other financial
In thousands of EUR Note recelvables receivables
Provislon for Impalrment at 1 January 83 -
Provision for impairment during the period 26 661 283
Provision for impairment at 31 December 744 283

Analysis by credit quality of current trade and other financial receivables outstanding at 31 December 2017

is as follows:
2017
Other
Trade financial Fair value

In thousands of EUR receivables  receivables receivables
Neither past due nor impaired
- Settled after the end of the period and before 29 February of

subsequent year 39,184 1,456 -
- Receivables not settled after the end of the period or before 29

February of subsequent year 1,226 2,440 -
- Receivables from cash collaterals with maturity within 12 months - 1,672 -
- Fair value of commodity derivatives - - 13,425
Total neither past due nor impaired 40,410 5,568 13,425
Past due but not Impaired
- less than 60 days overdue 3,023 122 -
- 60 to 90 days overdue 667 67 -
- 91 to 180 days overdue 570 43 -
- 181 to 360 days overdue 581 23 -
- over 360 days overdue 390 457 B
Total past due but not impaired 5,231 712 -
Individually determined to be impaired (gross}
- less than 60 days overdue 2 30 -
- 60 to 90 days overdue - 56 -
- 91 to 180 days overdue - 12 -
- 181 to 360 days overdue 1 - N
- over 360 days overdue 815 122 -
Total individually impaired 818 222 -
Less impairment provision (818) (222) -
Total 45,642 6,280 13,425
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In 2016:
2016
Other

Trade financial Fair value
In thousands of EUR receivables  receivables receivables
Neither past due nor impaired
- Settled after the end of the period and before 29 February of 31.916 201 a

subsequent year !
- Receivables not settled after the end of the period or before 29 4371 8.901
February of subsequent year ! !

- Receivables from cash collaterals with maturity within 12 months - 1,600 -
- Fair value of commodity derivatives - - 1,540
Total neither past due nor Impaired 36,287 10,702 1,540
Past due but not impaired
- less than 60 days overdue 2,191 - -
- 60 to 90 days overdue 983 10 -
- 91 to 180 days overdue 216 - B
- 181 to 360 days overdue 432 75 -
- over 360 days overdue 208 1 -
Total past due but not impaired 4,030 86 -
Individually determined to be impaired (gross)
- less than 60 days cverdue - 283 -
- 60 to 90 days overdue 1 - -
- 91 to 180 days overdue - - -
- 181 to 360 days overdue 3 - -
- over 360 days overdue 740 - -
Total individually impaired 744 283 -
Less impalrment provision {744) (283) -
Total 40,317 10,788 1,540

The primary factors that the Group considers in determining whether a receivable is impaired are its
overdue status, the realisability of related collateral or other credit enhancement, if any, the assessment of
individual debtor considering the historical experience and the payment discipline of a particular customer.
Based on the assessment, management may decide that trade and other receivables may not be impaired

even if they have not been settled within 180 days of their due date.

After the end of the pericd the trade receivables categorised in the aged bucket of “181 to 36Q days overdug”
have been settled in the amount of EUR 362 thousand (2016: EUR 269 thousand) and in the aged bucket

of “over 360 days overdue” have not been settled.

Refer further to Note 34 for credit risk disclosures.
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15 Cash and cash Equivalents

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents balances may be summarised based on Moody's ratings
as follows at 31 December:

In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Neither past due nor impaired

Cash on hand 64 103
Bank balances payable on demand 18,180 11,667
Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months 22 19
Total cash and cash equivaients 18,266 11,789

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Bank Bank
balances balances
payable on Term payable on Term

In thousands of EUR demand deposits demand deposits
Neither past due nor impaired

-A1 - - 3,599 -
- A2 1,852 22 869 19
-A3 1,810 - 1 -
- Ba1 8 - 29 -
- Baa1 - - 5,719 -
- BaaZ2 5,657 - - -
- Unrated 8,753 - 1,450 -
Total 18,180 22 11,667 19

Investing and financing transactions that did not require the use of cash and cash equivalents and were
excluded from the cash flow statement are presented in Note 28.

At 31 December 2017 and at 31 December 2016, substantially all cash and cash equivalents have been
pledged to third parties as collateral for borrowings. Refer to Note 19.
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16 Construction Contracts

For revenue earned from construction contracts and subcontractors’ expenses incurred during the year

2017, refer to Note 14 and Note 20, respectively.

The tables below present the net balance sheet position and extracts from the consolidated statement of

financial position for construction contracts in progress as of 31 December:

In thousands of EUR 2017 2016
The aggregate costs incurred and recognised profits 1,200 2,467
Recognised losses - -
Less: Progress billings (1,211) (2,457)
Net balance sheet position for contracts in progress (11) 10

The extracts from the consolidated statement of financial position for contracts in progress as of

31 December:

in thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Cash collateral 447 432
Total non-current assets 447 432
Trade receivables 14 521 1,167
Less; Provision for impairment of receivables (66) -
Trade receivables — net 455 1,167
Amounts due from customers for contract work - 10
Total current assets 455 1,177
Total assets 902 1,609
Amounts due to customers for contract work 20 (11) -
Total current liabilities (11) -
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17 Share Capital

The nominal registered amount of the Company's issued share capital is EUR 25,002
(2016: EUR 25,001). -

The total authorised and outstanding number of ordinary shares is 7 shares (2016: 6 shares), 5 of them
with a par value of EUR 5,000 per share and 2 shares (2016: 1 share) with a par value of EUR 1. All issued
ordinary shares are fully paid. Each ordinary share carries one vote.

18 Capital funds and other reserves

Legal reserve fund is obligatorily created from the profit of the Company in accordance with the Slovak
Commercial Code, paragraph 67. The minimum prescribed creation of the legal reserve fund is specified
in paragraph 217 of the Commercial Code and it defines that the Company is obliged to create a legal
reserve fund in the amount of 10% of its share capital at the time of the incorporatlon of the Company. This
amount must be increased annually by at least 10% from profit for the year, until the legal reserve fund
achieves 20% of the share capital. Use of this fund is restricted under the Commercial Code only to cover
losses of the Company and it is not a distributable reserve.

The legal reserve fund represents EUR 3 thousand as at 31 December 2017 (2016: EUR 3 thousand).

Capital funds and other reserves as of 31 December 2017 consist of share premium of EUR 77,227
thousand (2016: EUR 49,867 thousand) contributed by the shareholders and of foreign currency translation
reserve of EUR negative 51 thousand {2016: negative EUR 30 thousand). During 2017 shareholders
contributed EUR 27,360 thousand to Share premium, refer to Note 33.

In accordance with Slovak legislation, the Company distributes profits as dividends on the basis of financial
statements prepared in accordance with the Slovak Accounting Rules. Slovak legislation identifies the basis
of distribution as the retained profits including other funds excluding the statutory legal reserve fund. There
are no available distributable retained profits in the Company.

19 Borrowings

In thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Bank averdraft and revolving facilities 7,693 2,304
Bank loans 77,740 83,138
Borrowings from sale and leaseback 3,937 3,168
Borrowings from related parties 6 83,598 55,084
Other borrowings 471 505
Total borrowings 173,439 144,199

All the Group’'s borrowings are denominated in EUR currency except EUR 29,728 thousand in PLN (2016:
all the Group's borrowings denominated in EUR currency except EUR 202 thousand in PLN). The unused
credit line on the overdraft and revolving facilities represents EUR 6,371 thousand (2016: EUR 11,530
thousand).

Substantially all property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets, financial investments, inventory,
trade receivables and cash are pledged as collateral for bank loans. Refer to Notes 7,9, 11, 13, 14 and 15.

Shares and investments in subsidiaries GGE a. s. (100%), ELGAS, s.r.o. (100%), TEPLAREN Pova2sk4
Bystrica, s.r.o. (100%), Teplo GGE s.r.o. (100%), SOUTHERM, s.r.0. (100%), Snina Energy, s.r.o. (100%),
GGE distriblcia, a.s. (100%), GGE Trade, a.s. (100%), Duon Dystrybucja S.A. (100%) and GGE Polska
Gaz sp. z.0.0. (100%) are pledged as collateral for borrowings of EUR 85,433 thousand (2016: EUR 85,442
thousand).
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The assets of subsidiaries as reported in their statutory financial statements, the shares of which have been
pledged as collateral for borrowings, are as follows:

31 December 2017

Property, plant

Cash and cash

In thousands of EUR and equipment Receivables Inventory equivalents Other Total
GGE a. s. 629 660 1 575 178,541 180,406
Snina Energy, s. r. 0. 5,883 940 16 81 - 6,920
TepIEA GGEs.r. 0. 19,703 2,035 48 1,517 - 23,329
TEPLAREN Povazska
Bystrica, 8.r.0. 81,049 5,893 273 5,659 3,356 96,264
ELGAS, s.r.o. 1,489 30,642 2,477 3,509 20 38,189
SOUTHERM, s.r.o. 7,834 222 14 878 4 8,948
GGE distribucia, a.s. 5,527 2,888 - 80 - 8,485
GGE Trade, a.s. - 500 - 26 47,372 47,798
Duon Dystrybucja S.A. 44,029 7,407 368 1,543 1,978 55,325
GGE Polska Gaz sp. - 0 - 22 57313 57,535
2.0.0.
Total pledged assets 166,179 51,087 3,197 14,000 288,656 523,209
31 December 2016

Property, plant Cash and cash
In thousands of EUR and equipment Recelvables Inventory equivalents Other Total
GGE a.s. 615 534 4 6,483 151,260 158,896
Snina Energy, s. . 0. 5,749 662 18 83 - 6,512
TepIEfGE_ 8.T. 0. 19,424 2,206 48 1,728 - 23,406
TEPLAREN, ass.,
Povazskd Bystrica 78,348 5,607 281 1,430 3,356 89,022
ELGAS, s.r.0. 1,249 29,382 3,121 4,742 339 38,833
SOUTHERM, s.r.o. 7,794 256 13 588 8,651
Total pledged assets 113,179 38,647 3,485 15,054 154,955 325,320

The Group is obliged to comply with certain financial and non-financial covenants under the terms of the
bank facilities agreement. The term and revolving facilities agreement originally dated 21 August 2015 has
been amended and restated on 23 February 2016. The financial covenants were tested in relation to the

Group's 2016 and 2017 financial performance and position and they were fulfilled.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of borrowings as of 31 December are as follows:

In thousands of EUR Carrying amount 2017 __ Fair value 2017

Bank overdraft and revolving facilities 7,693 7,693
Bank loans 77,740 80,072
Borrowings from sale and leaseback 3,937 4,174
Borrowings from related parties 83,598 83,598
Other borrowings 471 523
Total borrowings 173,439 176,060
In thousands of EUR Carrying amount 2016 Fair value 2016

Bank overdraft and revolving facilities 2,304 2,304
Bank loans 83,138 87,475
Borrowings from sale and leaseback 3,168 2,774
Borrowings from related parties 55,084 55,084
Other borrowings 505 574
Total borrowings 144,199 148,211

Refer to Note 36 for fair value disclosures.

Net Debt Reconciliation

The tables below set out an analysis of net debt and the movements in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities for each of the periods presented. The items of these liabilities are those that are reported as
financing in the statement of cash flows.

In thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Non-current borrowings 121,975 127,219
Current borrowings 51.464 16,980
Current finance lease liabilities 1,347 60
Cash (18,266) {11,789)
Net debt 156,520 132,470
Liabilitles from financing activities Cash and cash Total
Borrowlngs Finance [ease equivalents
In thousands or EUR liabilities
Net debt at 1 January 2017 144,199 60 (11,789) 132,470
Cash flows, out of which: (8,492) - {4,599) (13,091)
- drawings borrowings 10,045 - - 10,045
- payments of principal and
interests (18,537) - - {(18,537)
Business combinations 29,728 1,285 (1,878} 29,135
Interest expense 8,004 2 - 8,006
Net debt at 31 December 2017 173,439 1,347 (18,266) 156,520
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20 Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables comprise the faliowing as of 31 December 2017:

In thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Trade payables 43,953 36,410
Accrued liabilities and other creditors 2,211 4,326
Liabilities from commodity derivatives 36 13,711 4,221
Other payables 787 687
Total financial payables within trade and other payables 60,662 45,644
Payables to employaes 337 858
Saocial security payables 274 262
Other tax payable 4132 4,886
Advance payments received 2,687 481
Amounts due to customers for contract work 11 -
Provision for overconsumption of CO2 291 1
Other non-financial payables 2,560 1,984
Trade and other payables 70,854 54,116
Trade and other payables are denominated in currencies as follows:

In thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Trade and other payables denominated in: - EUR 52,685 47,400
- Serbian Dinar 1,349 2,184

- Polish Zloty 6,185 2,837

- Czech Koruna 10,634 877

- Other 1 818

70,854 54,116

Total trade and other payables

Trade payables of EUR 5,782 thousand were past due date as
(2016: EUR 4,790 thousands).

at 31 December 2017
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21 Other Liabilities

Other liabilities comprise the following as of 31 December 2017:

In thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Advanced rental payments 140 -
Service concession payable 4,944 4,252
Payables towards municipalities 1,180 053
Other liabilities - 196
Total non-current other liabilities 6,274 5,401
Service concession payable 136 -
Payables towards municipalities - -
Liability from acquisition of a subsidiary 33 35 6,000
Social fund liability 185 52
Other - 642
Total current other liabilities 356 6,694
Total other liablilities 6,630 12,095
22 Analysis of Revenue by Category
1 January 1 January
2017 - 2016 -
31 December 31 December
In thousands of EUR Note 2017 2016
Sales of heat 23,698 22,680
Sales of water 1,216 1,280
Sales of gas 99,006 99,771
Sales of electricity 202,969 174,580
Sale of coal 137 40
Revenues from construction contracts 16 1,200 2,385
Revenues from other services 4,998 4,985
Total revenue 333,224 305,691
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23 Energy consumption

1 January 2017 -

2 January 2016 —

In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Purchases of commodity:
-  Electricity 76,903 58,409
- Gas 102,825 89,992
Distribution services:
- Electricity 90,812 75,445
- Gas 18,071 20,528
Consumption:
- Wood chips 113 106
- Waler 653 677
- Coal 1,349 1,023
Other consumption 698 1,036
Total energy consumption 201,424 245,216

24 Consumables and services

Other consumables and services mainly comprise costs such as entertainment expenses, meal vouchers

and other external supplies of services.

In thousands of EUR

1 January 2017 -

Note 31 December 2017

1 January 2016 —
31 December 2016

Consulting services and other professional services
Sales commission expense

Repairs and maintenance expense

Other subcontractors’ expense

Advertising expense

Material consumption

Rent expense

Balancing services support

Transportation expense

Telecommunication and IT services expense
Audit fee

Sewerage charge

Representation expense

Garbage removal

Training of employees

Mail and delivery expense

Travel expense

Cost of merchandise sold

Cleaning

Other

Total Consumables and services

3,276
1,752
1.432
1,331
1,264
1,200
807
677
560
396
384
348
255
53

X

45

39

10

0
1,041

14,914

3,008
2,133
1,823
2,174
1,449
1,082
2,237
556
103
394
403
308
244
37

63

40

38
122
100
985

17,380
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25 Labour and related expenses

1 January 2017 -

1 January 2016 -
31 December 2016

In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017

Wages and salaries 6,347 6,505

Management bonuses 1,145 1,238

Social security costs 2,395 2,178
9,887 9,921

Total Labour and related expenses

Social security costs included the contributions to the government defined contribution pension plans of
EUR 952 thousand (2016: EUR 867 thousand). The Group makes contributions to these pension plans at
the average statutory rates of 14% from the gross salary payments subject to monthly salary cap defined

by the relevant law in force during the period.
26 Other Operating Income and Expenses

Other operating income comprise:

1 January 2017 -

1 January 2016 -
31 December 2016

In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017
Income from receivables write-off and cession - 275
Release of provision for overconsumption of CO2 46 B
Net gain from sale of property, plant and equipment = 29
Foreign exchange gains from operating activities 330 173
Insurance claims income 82 20
Net gain from sale of inventory 26 10
Release of government grant to income 26 23
Other 58 59
568 589

Total other operating income

Other operating expenses comprise;

1 January 2017 -

1 January 2016 -

In thousands of EUR Note 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Provision for overconsumption of CO2 20 290 -
Insurance expense 5§73 655
Taxes and charges 312 389
Impairment of receivables 14 229 944
Bank charges and fees 435 418
Net foss from sale of property, plant and equipment 104 8
Impairment of property, plant and equipment - 62
Foreign exchange losses from operating activities 423 171
Receivables write-off and cession 76 29
Fines and penalties expense 105 287
Other 6 778

2,553 3,741

Total other operating expenses
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27 Income Taxes

(a) Components of income tax expense
Income tax expense recorded in profit or loss comprises the following:

1 January 2017 -

1 January 20186 -

In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2018
Current tax expense 2,900 5,135
Special levy on profits in excess of EUR 3,000 thousand 748 578

from regulated activities
Deferred tax expense / (benefit) (3,334) (197)
314 5,516

Income tax expense for the period

(b) Reconciliation between the tax expense and profit or loss multiplied by applicable tax rate

The income tax rate applicable to the majority of the Group's 2017 income is 22%. The income tax rate
applicable to the majority of income of subsidiaries ranges from 9% to 22%. The reconciliation between the

expected and the actual taxation charge is provided below.

1 January 2017 -
In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017

1 January 2016 -
31 December 2016

Loss before tax

Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 22%:

Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for
taxation purposes:
- Non-deductible expenses

- Effect of tax losses not recognised

- Effect on deferred taxes of change in standard tax rate to
21% from 1 January 2017

- Effect of Special levy on deferred taxes of change in standard
tax rate to 24% in TEPLAREN PovaZska Bystrica, s.r.0.

- Effect of Special levy on profits in excess of EUR 3,000
thousand from regulated activities

Other

Income tax expense for the period

(7,224)

(1.517)

757
854

748
(528)

314

(1,261)

(277)

1,839
1,067

(700)
2,074
578
935

5,516
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¢) Tax loss carry-forwards

The Group has unrecognised potential deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax loss carry forwards of
EUR 16 thousand (2016: EUR 365 thousand). The tax loss carry forwards expire as follows:

1 January 2017 — 1 January 2016 -
in thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Tax loss camry-forwards expiring by the end of:
- 31 December 2017 - 641
- 31 December 2018 937 672
- 31 December 2019 1,202 037
- 31 December 2020 517 252
- 31 December 2021 326 61
- 31 December 2022 83 19
- after 31 December 2022 70 37
3,135 2,619

Total tax loss carry forwards

(d) Deferred taxes in respect of subsidiaries

The Group has not recorded a deferred tax in respect of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries or a joint venture as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
those temporary differences and does not intend to sell the investments or otherwise reverse the
temporary differences in the foreseeable future.
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(e) Deferred taxes analysed by type of temporary difference

Differences between IFRS as adopted by the EU and statutory taxation regulations in Slovak Republic and
other countries give rise to temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. The tax effect of the movements in these temporary
differences is detailed below and is recorded at the rate of 21%. (2016: 21%)

Acquired
through
Charged/ business
1 January (credited)to combination
In thousands of EUR 2017 profit or loss (Note 33) 31 Dec 2017

Tax effect of deductible/(taxable) temporary

differences and tax loss carry forwards:

Difference between tax and accounting value of

property, plant and equipment (different tax

depreciation) (8,350) (184) (882) (9,416)
Difference between tax and accounting value of

feed in tariffs, service concessions, and other

intangibles (different recognition criteria

applicable under local statutory rules) (13,298) 2,460 (1,484) (12,322)
Difference hetween tax and accounting value of

other intangible assets - emission rights

(different recognition criteria applicable under

local statutory rules) (152) 35 - (117)
Deferred tax from unamortized tax losses - 642 - 642
Deferred revenue from government grants

(different tax amortisation) (365) 50 - (315)
Impairment provision for receivables 33 - - 33
Deferred tax from commodity derivatives 264 162 - 426
Other (303) 169 105 (29)
Net deferrad tax asset/{liability} (22,171) 3,334 (2,261) (21,098)
Recognised deferred tax asset 088 1,010 436 2,434
Recagnised deferred tax liability (23,159) 2,324 (2,697) (23,532)

Net deferred tax asset/(llabllity) (22,171} 3,334 (2,261) (21,008)
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in 2016:
Charged/
(credited) to
profit or loss
In thousands of EUR 1 January 2016 ({restated) 31 Dec 2016
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable) temporary differences
and tax loss carry forwards:
Difference between tax and accounting value of property,
plant and equipment (different tax depreciation) (7.868) (482} (8,350)
Difference between tax and accounting value of feed in
tariffs and service concessions {different recognition criteria (13,885) 587 (13,298)
applicable under local statutory ruies)
Difference between tax and accounting value of other
intangible assets - emission rights (different recognition (79) (73) {152)
criteria applicable under local statutory rules)
Deferred revenue from government grants (different tax
amortisation) (436) 71 (365)
Impairment provision for receivables (16) 49 33
Deferred tax from commodity derivatives (194) 458 264
Other 110 (413) (303)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) {22,368) 197 (22,171)
Recognised deferred tax asset 31 677 0988
Recognised deferred tax liability (22 679) {480) (23,159)
Net deferred tax asset/(liability) (22,368) 197 (22,171)

In the context of the Group's current structure, tax losses and current tax assets of different Group

companies may not be offset against current tax liabilities and taxable profits of other Group companies
and, accordingly, taxes may accrue even where there is a consolidated tax loss. Therefore, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset only when they relate to the same taxable entity.
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28 Significant Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

Investing transactions that did not require the use of cash and cash equivalents and were excluded from
the cash flow statement are as follows:

1 January 2017 - 1 January 2016 —
In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Non=cash Investing activities
Prolongation of existing service concessions 1,378 1,402
Acquisition of assets under services concessions through sale and - 900
lease back
Acquisition of assets under sale and lease back 1,846 910
Repayment of other liability from escrow account held as restricted (6,000} {7,000}
cash
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets acquired 55,796 -
through business combination (Note 33)
Non-cash Investing activities 53,020 (3,788)

Financing transactions that did not require the use of cash and cash equivalents and were excluded from
the cash flow statement are as follows:

1 January 2017 - 1 January 2016 ~
In thousands of EUR 31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Non-cash financing activities
Acquisition of subsidiary, shareholder non-monetary contribution 27,360 -
settlement (Note 33)
Borrowings and finance lease acquired through business combination (31,013)
(Note 33)
Non-cash financing actlvities (3,653) -

29 Contingencies and Commitments

Tax contingencies. Tax legislation in the countries, where the Group operates, which was enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, is subject to varying interpretations when being
applied to the transactions and activities of the Group. Consequently, tax positions taken by management
and the formal documentation supporting the tax positions may be challenged by tax authorities. Central
and Eastern Europe countries tax administration is gradually strengthening, including the fact that there is
a higher risk of review of tax transactions without a clear business purpose or with tax incompliant
counterparties. Fiscal periods remain open to review by the authorities in respect of taxes for three to five
calendar years (ten years in respect of examination for application of transfer pricing and cross-border
transactions) preceding the year when decision about review was made. Under certain circumstances
reviews may cover longer periods.

As Central and Eastern European countries tax legislation does not provide definitive guidance in certain
areas, the Group adopts, from time to time, interpretations of such uncertain areas that reduce the overall
tax rate of the Group. While management currently estimates that the tax positions and interpretations that
it has taken can probably be sustained, there is a possible risk that outflow of resources will be required
should such tax positions and interpretations be challenged by the tax authorities. The impact of any such
challenge cannot be reliably estimated; however, it may be significant to the financial position andfor the
overall operations of the Group.
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Environmental matters. The enforcement of environmental regulation in the Central and Eastern Europe
is evolving and the enforcement posture of government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The
Group periodically evaluates its obligations under environmental regulations. As obligations are
determined, they are recognised immediately. Potential liabilities, which might arise as a result of changes
in existing regulations, civil litigation or legislation, cannot be estimated but could be material. In the current
enforcement climate under existing legislation, management believes that there are no significant liabilities
for environmental damage.

30 Derivative Financial Instruments

(a) Interest rate swaps

The Group enters into hedge agreements with its counterparty banks to swap interest rates. Such
agreements, while legally separate, are aggregated and accounted for as a single fixed interest rate loan
where (i) the loans and hedging derivatives are entered into at the same time and in contemplation of one
another, (ii) they have the same counterparty, (iii) they are not separately transferable, (iv) they relate to
the same risk and (v) there is no apparent business purpose for structuring the transactions separately that
could not also have been accomplished in a single transaction.

The fixed interest rate represents 0.403%, and the floating rate is EURIBOR. The derivative financial
instruments expense settled during the reported period represent EUR 516 thousand
(2016: EUR 430 thousand) and is presented in interest expense.

{b) Commodity derivatives

During the reported period ending 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group has entered info
several commodity derivative contracts with other energy trading companies with an objective to benefit
from favorable movements of market prices of electricity and gas. Derivatives have potentially favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) conditions as a result of fluctuations in commodity prices or other
variables relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of commedity derivative financial assets and
liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The gain from commodity derivatives recognized in the reported period 2017 represents EUR 2,673
thousand (2016: loss of EUR 2,626 thousand).

31 Non-Controlling Interest

There were no significant transactions with non-controlling interests in 2017 and 2016. The non-controlling
interest as of 31 December 2017 represents EUR 321 thousand (2016: EUR 327 thousand).
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32 Principal Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Percentage Percentage
of voting of  Country of
Name Nature of business rights ownership  reglstration
Subsidiaries:
Holding company for operation on Slovak
GGE a.s. the territory of Slovak Republic 100% 100% Republic
Slovak
Teplo GGE, s.r.o. Production and supply of heat 100% 100% Republic
Production and supply of heat and Slovak
SOUTHERM, s.r.o. hot water 100% 100% Republic
i Management of residential and non- Slovak
SOUTHERM SPRAVA, s.r.o. residential real estate 66% 66% Republic
TEPLAREN Povazska Production and supply of heat and Slovak
Bystrica, s.1.0. electricity 100% 100% Republic
Slovak
ELGAS, k. 8.* Gas and electricity supply 100% 100% Republic
Slovak
Elgas Sales, a.s. Gas and electricity supply 100% 100% Republic
Operation of sewer and water
systems, distribution of gas and Slovak
GGE distribucia, a.s. electricity 100% 100% Republic
Production and supply of heat and Slovak
Snina Energy, s.r.o. electricity 100% 100% Republic
Delivery of heating technology, Slovak
TENERGO Slovensko, a.s. construction services 100% 100% Republic
Construction and operation of small Slovak
GGE Invest, s.r.o. cogeneration units 100% 100% Republic
Management of residential and non- Slovak
IFM, a.s. residential real estate 100% 100% Republic
Management of residential and non- Slovak
IFM - PB, s.r.o. residential real estate 100% 100% Republic
Management of residential and non- Slovak
IFM - BA, s.r.o. residential real estate 100% 100% Republic
Czech
ELGAS Energy s.r.o. Gas and electricity supply 100% 100% Republic
ELGAS Energy
Kereskedelmi, Kft. Gas and slectricity supply 100% 100% Hungary
Holding company for operation on
GGE d.0.0. BEOGRAD the temritory of Sarbia 90% 90% Serbia
ELGAS ENERGY TRADING,
d.o.o. Beograd Gas and electricity supply 100% 90% Serbia
ELGAS ENERGY TRADING
MONTENEGROQ, d.o.0 Gas and electricity supply 100% 100%  Montenegro
Helding company for operation on
GGE SP. Z.0.0, the territory of Poland 100% 100% Poland
ELGAS ENERGY, SP.Z Q.
0. Gas and electricity supply 100% 100% Poland
CIEPLOWNIA Production and supply of heat and
SIEMIANOWICE, SP. Z.0.0. electricity 95% 95% Poland
Termico SP. Z.0.0. Installation and maintenance
services 100% 95% Poland
Production and supply of heat and
IDEA 98 SP. 2.0.0. electricity 100% 100% Poland
Production and supply of heat and Slovak
Energetika Sered, s.r.o. electricity 100% 100% Republic
Slovak
V.l. Energy Group a.s. Advisory services 100% 100% Republic
Slovak
GGE Trade, a.s. Advisory services 100% 100% Republic
Holding company for operation on
GGE Polska Gaz sp. z 0.0. the territory of Poland 100% 100% Poland
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Percentage Percentage
of voting of  Country of
Name Nature of business rights ownership _ registration
DUON Praszka Sp. z 0.0. Production and supply of heat 66% 66% Poland
Transport and service activities
incidental to oil and natural gas
PGS sp. z0.0. extraction 100% 100% Poland
Duon Dystribucja S.A. Distribution of gas 100% 100% Poland
*The legal form of the entity transformed to limited partnership as of 1 March 2017
Percentage
of voting Percentage  Country of
Name Nature of business rights of ownership registration
Joint venture:
KGJ Invest a.s. Production and supply of heat and Slovak
electricity 50% 50% Republic
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33 Business Combinations

In December 2017 the Company increased the nominal registered amount of share capital by EUR 1 and
increased share premium by EUR 27,360 thousand. Increase in equity was settied through non-monetary
contribution by the parent company to the Company of 100% of share capital of GGE Polska Gaz sp. z
0.0., PGS sp. z 0.0. and Duon Dystribucja S.A. and 66% of share capital of DUON Praszka Sp. z 0.0. and
the Group became a sole owner of the entities GGE Polska Gaz sp. z 0.0., PGS sp. z 0.0. and Duon
Dystribucja S.A. and majority owner of DUON Praszka Sp. z 0.0.

The Group has not finalised initial accounting for the acquisition of the group of GGE Polska Gaz sp. z 0.0.
as of the date of preparation of these financial statements. The Group used the option under IFRS to use
provisional fair values to value assets and liabilities acquired. The management expect that the fair values
of assets and liabilities acquired and consequently of goodwill recognised will change upon the final
determination during 2018 and comparatives will be retroactively adjusted in the Group’s 2018 financial
statemenits, if necessary.

Provisional fair value at

In thousands of EUR Note acquisition during 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 1,878
Property, plant and equipment 7 47,536
Other intangible assets 9 8,260
Deferred income tax asset 436
Inventory 381
Current income tax receivable 167
Trade and other recsivables 5,874
Borrowings (29,728)
Deferred income tax liabilities {(2,697)
Trade and othar payables (3,868)
Finance lease liability ST (1,285)
Other liabilities (35)
Less: Shareholder non-monetary contribution settlement (27,360)
Fair value of identiflable net assets of subsidiary {461)
Goodwili arising from business combinations 8 461

Total purchase consideration -
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired 1,878

Inflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisition 1,878
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In February 2016 the Group acquired 100% of share capital of IDEA 98 SP. 2.0.0. for cash consideration
of EUR 1,975 thousand and became a sole owner of the entity.

In October 2016 the Group acquired 100% of share capital of V.I. Energy Group a.s. and Energetika Sered,
s.r.o. for cash consideration of EUR 1,750 thousand and became a sole owner of the entities.

Upon the acquisition the Group recognised goodwill as follows:

Fair value at
In thousands of EUR Note acquisition during 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 57
Property, plant and equipment 7 1,052
Other intangible assets 9 2,449
inventory 155
Other current assets 24
Trade and other receivables 797
Borrowings (809)
Trade and other payables (820)
Other liabilities (2,109)
Fair value of identifiable net assets of subsidiary 796
Goodwill arising from business combinations 8 2,932
Total purchase consideration 3,728
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired 57
Outflow of cash and cash equivalents on acquisition 3,671

34 Financial Risk Management

The risk management function within the Group is carried out in respect of financial risks, operational risks
and legal risks. Financlial risk comprises credit risk, market risk (including currency risk and interest rate
risk), and liquidity risk. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are to establish
risk limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The operational and legal risk
management functions are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures, in
order to minimise operational and legal risks.

Risk management is carried out by management under direction of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board. Management, represented mainly by the Group Chief Financial Officer, identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas,
such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financiai instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
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Credit risk. The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposure to
credit risk arises as a result of the Group’s sales of products and services on credit terms and other
transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by class of assets is reflected in the carrying amounts of
financial assets in the statement of financial position as follows:

in thousands of EUR 2017 2016
Non-current financial investments 1"
- Loans issued 32 21
Trade and other recelvables 14
- Trade receivables 48,508 41,061
- Other financial receivables 21,536 12,611
Current financial investments 11
- Loans issued 997 992
Restrictad cash, current 12 322 6,336
Cash and cash equivalents 15
- Bank balances payable on demand 18,180 11,667
- Term deposits with original maturity of less than three months 22 19
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 89,597 72,707

The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure equals to a
difference between the bank borrowings of EUR 85,433 thousand (2016: EUR 85,442 thousand) which are
subject to master netting and similar arrangements with the gross trade and other financial receivables
pledged in favour of the banks of EUR 70,044 thousand (2016: EUR 53,672 thousand).

The Group has master netting arrangements, which are enforceable in case of default. In addition,
applicable legislation allows an entity to unilaterally set off trade receivables and payables that are due for
payment, denominated in the same currency and outstanding with the same counterparty.

The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted
in relation to counterparties or groups of counterparties. Limits on the level of credit risk are approved
regularly by management for certain late-paying customers. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis
and are subject to an annual, or more frequent, review.

The Group’s management reviews ageing analysis of outstanding trade receivables and follows up on past
due balances. Management therefore considers it appropriate to provide ageing and other information
about credit risk as disclosed in Note 14.

Credit risk is managed on Group basis by managing and analysing the credit risk for each of new clients
before standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered.

Credit risks concentration. The Group is exposed to concentrations of credit risk. At 31 December 2017
the Group had 19 counterparties (2016: 18) with aggregated receivables balances individually above EUR
500 thousand {2016: EUR 500 thousand). The total aggregate amount of these balances was EUR 25,338
thousand (2016: EUR 22,787 thousand) or 38% of the total current trade and other receivables (2016:
38%).

The Group's bank deposits are held with 18 banks. The individual balances held with some of the banks
are significant thus exposing the Group to a concentration of credit risk. The credit quality of cash and cash
equivalents balances is presented in Note 15.
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Market risk. The Group takes on exposure to market risks. Market risks arise from open positions in
(a) foreign currencies and (b} interest bearing assets and liabilities, both of which are exposed to general
and specific market movements. Management sets limits on the value of risk that may be accepted, which
is monitored on a regular basis. However, the use of this approach does not prevent losses outside of these
limits in the event of more significant market movements.

Sensitivities to market risks included below are based on a change in a factor while holding all other factors
constant. In practice this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the factors may be correlated - for
example, changes in interest rate and changes in foreign currency rates.

Currency risk. Due to the Group’s expansion in Central Europe, management acknowledges elevated
exposure of the Group in respect of currency risk. Management follows internal objectives and sets limits
on the level of exposure by currency and in total. The positions are monitored regularly. The table below
summarises the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end of the reporting period:

At 31 December 2017
Monetary Monetary Net balance

financlal financial sheet
In thousands of EUR assets liabilities position
Euros (related to balances in foreign operations) 1,816 {1,349) 467
US Dollars - - -
Total 1,816 {1,349) 467
At 31 December 2016
Monetary Monetary Net balance
financlal financial sheet
In thousands of EUR assets llabllitles position
Euros (related to balances in foreign operations) 2,474 {2,363) 111
US Dollars 250 (122) 128
Total 2,724 (2,485) 239

The above analysis includes only monetary assets and liabilities. Investments in non-monetary assets are
not considered to give rise to any material currency risk.

The following table presents sensitivities of profit and loss and equity to reasonably possible changes in
exchange rates applied at the end of the reporting period relative to the functional currency of the respective
Group entities, with all other variables held constant:

At 31 December 2017

Impact on profit or loss and

In thousands of EUR equity

EUR strengthening/weakening by 10% against respective functional currency 487
US Dollar strengthening/weakening by 10% against respective functional

currency N
Total 467
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At 31 December 2016

Impact on profit or loss and

iIn thousands of EUR equity

EUR strengthening/weakening by 10% against respective functional currency (11)
US Dollar strengthening/weakening by 10% against respective functional

currency -
Total (11)

The exposure was calculated only for monetary balances denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the respective entity of the Group.

Interest rate risk. The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. The table below summarises the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risks. The table presents the aggregated amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual interest repricing or maturity
dates.

Demand
and less
than From1to From6to Morethan More than
In thousands of EUR 1 month 6 months 12 months 1 year 5 years Total
31 December 2017
Total financial assets 81,597 1,868 594 947 - 85,006
Total financial liabilities (42,863) (137,222) {4,401) (4,655) (51,193)  (240,333)
Net Interest sensitivity gap at
31 December 2017 38,734  (135,354) (3,807) (3,708) (51,193)  (155,327)
Demand
and less
than Fromito From6to Morethan More than
In thousands of EUR 1 month 6 months 12 months 1 year 5 years Total
31 December 2016
Total financial assets 54,541 16,549 693 929 - 72,712
Total financial liabilities (39,738) (106,342) (976) (3,763) (50,292)  (201,109)
Net interest sensitivity gap at

31 December 2016 14,805 (89,793) (283) (2,834) (50,292) (128,397)

Based on the various scenarios, the Group’s objective is to manage its cash flow interest rate risk by using
floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting
borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates. Generally, the Group raises long-term borrowings at floating
rates and swaps them into fixed rates to hedge its interest rate risk. Under the interest rate swaps, the
Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals (primarily quarterly),
the difference between fixed contract rates and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference
to the agreed notional amounts. Refer also to Note 36.

During the period between 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017, if interest rates at that date had been
100 basis points higher with all other variables held constant, profit for the year and equity would have been
EUR 321 thousand lower (2016: EUR 179 thousand), mainly as a result of higher interest expense on
variable interest liabilities.
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Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources
Liquidity risk is managed by management of the Group. Management monitors monthly rolling forecasts of
the Group’s cash flows showing the liquidity surplus or deficit.

The table below shows liabilities at 31 December 2017 by their remaining contractual maturity. The amounts
disclosed in the maturity table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows, including gross finance lease
liabilities (before deducting future finance charges) and gross bank borrowings. Such undiscounted cash
flows differ from the amounts included in the statement of financial position because the statement of
financial position amount is based on discounted cash flows.

When the amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed is determined by reference to the conditions
existing at the end of the reporting period. Foreign currency payments are translated using the spot
exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities at 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Demand
and less From
than From1to From6to 12 months Over 5
In thousands of EUR 1 month 6 months 12 months to 5 years years Total
Liabllities
Bank loans {(Note 19) 7,811 4,545 4,596 78,505 - 95,457
Borrowings from related parties (Note 19) - - 2,703 21,594 97,010 121,307
Finance lease liabilities 22 11 133 1,061 - 1,327
Trade and other financial payables (Note 35,066 21,961 3,206 427 2 60,662
20)
Other financial liabilities (Note 21) - - 854 1,985 5,211 8,050
Total future payments, including
future principal and interest payments 42,899 26,617 11,492 103,572 102,223 286,803
In 2016:
Demand
and less From
than From1to From8to 12 months Over5

In thousands of EUR 1 month 6 months 12 months to 5 years years Total
Liabilities
Bank loans (Note 19} 2,404 8,620 546 86,294 1,170 99,034
Borrowings from related parties (Note 19} - 8,044 - 20,418 96,841 125,303
Finance lease liabilities 6 18 16 24 - 64
Trade and other financial payables (Note
20) 37,345 8,183 16 79 22 45645

Other financial liabilities (Note 21) - 6,000 633 2,126 3812 12,571

Total future payments, including
future principal and interest payments 39,755 30,865 1,211 108,941 101,845 282,617
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35 Management of Capital

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The amount of capital that the Group managed as of 31 December
2017 was EUR 56,976 thousand (2016: EUR 37,142 thousand).

The Group is obliged to comply with externally imposed capital requirements. These covenants are set out
in the Group's loan agreements based on which for the period ending 31 December 2017 the Group is
required to maintain the leverage below 4.74. The leverage is calculated as the ratio of total net debt to
adjusted EBITDA for the relevant period. Based on the terms of the loan agreements the leverage should
not exceed 3.56 for the last period as of 30 June 2020 and any relevant period thereafter. The Group's
strategy is to comply with these covenants.

36 Fair Value Disclosures

Fair value measurements are analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) Level 1 are
measurements at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii) Level 2
measurements are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly {that is, derived from prices), and (iii) Level 3 measurements are
valuations not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs). Management applies
judgement in categorising financial instruments using the fair value hierarchy. If a fair value measurement
uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment, that measurement is a Level 3 measurement.
The significance of a valuation input is assessed against the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Recurring fair value measurements. Recurring fair value measurements are those that the accounting
standards require or permit in the statement of financial position at the end of each reporting period:

Financial instruments carried at fair value. Financial derivatives are carried in the statement of financial
position as of 31 December 2017 at therr fair value of EUR 13,425 thousand
(2016: EUR 1,540 thousand) as receivable from commodity derivatives and of EUR 13,711 thousand
{2016: EUR 4,221 thousand) as liability from commodity derivatives and are categorised as Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. Financial derivatives were valued using the discounted cash flows valuation technique
and Monte-Carlo model.
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Fair values analysed by level in the fair value hierarchy and carrying value of assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value are as follows:

31 December 2017
Level1 Level2 Level 3

Fair Fair Fair Carrying
In thousands of EUR Value Value Value value
ASSETS
Financlal investments
- Loans issued - 1,036 - 1,036
Other financial assets
- Trade receivables - 46,461 - 46,461
- Receivables from commodity derivatives - - 13,425 13,425
- Other financial receivables - 6,501 - 6,501
TOTAL ASSETS - 53,998 13,425 67,423
LIABILITIES
Borrowings
- Bank loans - 7,693 84,770 89,878
- Borrowings from related parties - - 83,598 83,598
- Other borrowings - - - -
Finance lease liabilities
Other financial liabilities
- Trade payables - 43,953 - 43,953
- Liabilitles from commodity derivatlves - 2,999 13,711 16,710
- Other financial payables - 185 5,380 6,379
- Other liabilities - - - -
- Liabilities from purchase of a subsidiary - - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 54,830 187,459 240,518
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31 December 2016
Level 1 Level2 Level 3

Fair Fair Fair Carrying
In thousands of EUR Value Value Value value
ASSETS
Financial investments
- Loans issued - 992 - 992
Other financial assets
- Trade receivables - 40,317 E 40,317
- Receivables from commaodity derivatives - - 1,540 1,540
- Other financial receivables - 10,809 - 10,809
TOTAL ASSETS - 52,118 1,540 53,658
LIABILITIES
Borrowlngs
- Bank loans - 2,304 90,250 88,610
- Borrowings from related parties - - 55,084 55,084
- Other borrowings - - 574 505
Finance lease liabilities - - 60 60
Other financial liabilities
- Trade payables - 36,410 - 36,410
- Liabilities from commodity derivatives - - 4,221 4,221
- Other financial payables - 5,013 - 5,013
- Other liabilities - 52 4,721 5,257
- Liabilities from purchase of a subsidiary - 6,000 - 6,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES - 49,779 154,910 201,160

The fair values in level 2 and 3 of fair value hierarchy, except for the financial guarantees, were estimated
using the discounted cash flows valuation technigue. The fair value of floating rate instruments that are not
quoted in an active market was estimated to be equal to their carrying amount. The fair value of unquoted
fixed interest rate instruments was estimated based on estimated future cash flows expected to be received
or paid discounted at current interest rates for new instruments with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. The discount rate used was 2.13% p.a. (2016: 3.45% p.a.) for financial liabilities carried at
amortised cost and none for financial assets carried at amortised cost. The discount rate used for
borrowings from related parties was 10% p.a. as the shareholder loan is subordinated to the bank loan and
has longer maturity ending in 2030, and the shareholders’ required return on equity was estimated at this
rate.

37 Presentation of Financial Instruments by Measurement Category

For the purposes of measurement, |AS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, classifies
financial assets into the following categories: (a) loans and receivables; (b) available-for-sale financial
assets; (c) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(‘FVTPL"). Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets
designated as such upon initial recognition, and (ii) those classified as held for trading. in addition, finance
lease receivables represent a separate category. As of 31 December 2017, all of the Group's financial
assets, except for derivatives, fell in the loans and receivables measurement category. All of the Group’s
financial liabilities, except for derivatives, are carried at amortised cost. Derivatives are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (Note 30).
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38 Events after the End of Reporting Period

On 11 January 2018, an agreement was signed between the Group, its shareholders and other related
parties, on the basis of which the immediate parent provided a loan to the Group of EUR 29,775 thousand
which replaced the loan from related party acquired during acquisition of Duon Group (Note 33).

On 31 January 2018, the Company increased share capital in the form of new issued common share in
amount of EUR 1 with share premium of EUR 2.6 million.

In February and April 2018, there have been also some changes in the members of the bodies of the
Company.

After 31 December 2017, no other significant events have occurred that would require recognition or
disclosure in these consolidated financial statements.

60



